
( March 1876 
The Telephone 

1. Alexander Graham Bell: 
A) Born in England. 
B) 1874 - American Citizen. 
C) Pioneer in helping the Deaf. 

2. February 14, 1876 - Bell & Elisha Gray submit 
patents for the "Telephone": 
A) Gray's goes in first ••• BUT, is placed in a 

basket to go thru channels! 
B) Bell's is hand-walked through the process! 

I. NOT intentionally!!! 

3. March 7, 1876 - Bell is granted the patent! 

4. March 10, 1876 _1 st Telephone transmission: 

A) From one room to another. 
B) "Mr. Watson, come here. I want to see you." 



( July 1876 

Sam Lehman - Cruel Executioner 

1. Is Marshal of Hall Valley, Colorado: 
A) In fact ••• Greedy - Money-Loving -

Executioner. 

2. July 1876 - Hangs Barney Greene for murder: 
A) Doesn't tie hands and feet. 
B) Takes Greene 2 hours to "get tired" of 

holding the rope. 
C) Strangles to death. 

3. July 1876 to November 1877: . 
A) Hangs 47 people. 
B) Hangs 2 men at opposite ends of the same 

rope at the same time!! 
C) Hangs Clementine Raynor and her husband 

for stealing food: 
I. Makes her balance for an hour on a Saw­

Horse ••• She tires ••• Falls ••• Hangs! 

D) Hangs Jeremiah Hurst. 

4. Hurst's widow, Florris, hires a group of men: 



A) To kidnap Lehman and bring him to her. 
B) Night - Drag him from his home. 
C) Take him to his hanging tree. 

D) Florris Hurst puts noose around his neck. 

E) Lynch him!! 



1876 (August) 
1. Colorado - 38th State. 

( 

( 



( , 

( 

1876 (November) 
1. Charles McCauley - 8th Commandant - U.S.M.C.: 

A) Born - 1/29/1827 - Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. 
B) Mexican/American War. 
C) Civil War. 
D) October 13, 1891 - Rosemont, Pennsylvania -

Dies. 

2. Presidential Election: 
A) Democrat, Samuel Tilden - Wins popular vote 

by 250,000. 
B) 3 States are in dispute: 

I. Florida - South Carolina - Louisiana. 
C) December 1876 - Elector Votes are cast: 

I. Republican, Rutherford Hayes - 19th 

President. 



( 1877 
1. Thomas Edison - Invents the Phonograph. 

2. California ••• Anti-Chinese Riots. 

( 
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1877 
.". Charles Bolton ~ 

.;fC "Black Bart" ~ 

1. Charles Bolton: 
A) Born - New York - 1820. 
B) 57 years old when his life of crime starts in California. 
C) Tall- Blue Eyes - White Hair - Dresses well. 
D) Robs stagecoaches - Doesn't rob the passengers. 
E) Uses a double barreled shotgun - Never fires it. 
F) Flour sack over head during robberies. 
G) Wears a long white linen duster during robberies. 
II) Writes and leaves poeta. 
I) Always travels on foot. 
J) Cuts open the mail sacks in a certain way. 
K) Always uses an ax to cut open strongboxes. 
L) Always leaves the ax behind. 
M) Always polite to the passengers. 
N) Carries a backpack and camps out. 

2. August 3, 1877: "I've labored long and hard for bread, for 
honor, and for riches. 
But, on my corns to long you've tread you 
fine fme-haired sons-of-bitches." 
Black Bart the P08 

3. Total of $800 in rewards for him. 

4. Wells Fargo detective, J.B. Hume, in charge of getting him. 

5. 5 year career - 28 robberies. 



( 6. November 1883 - Robbery - Trailed - Flour sacks are 

( 

found: 
A) Find a handkerchief with a laundry mark on it. 
B) Harry Morse traces the mark - Charles Bolton! 

7. Arrested - Dressed in suit, derby, cane, diamond ring, 
diamond stickpin, and gold watch: 
A) Confesses to 1 so he will not be prosecuted for the other 

27. 
B) Sentence - 6 years in San Quentin. 
C) January 21, 1888 - Released for good behavior. 
D) March 1888 - Simply disappears from San Francisco 

and is never heard from again. 



( 1877 (March) 
1. March 4, 1877 - Is a Sunday - Grant's term as 

President is over!! 
A) Rutherford Hayes ••• Religious ••• Refuses to 

take the oath of office on the Sabbath! 
B) Speaker of the House ••• Not in Washington, 

D.C.! 
C) President Pro-Tem of the Senate, Thomas 

Ferry of Michigan: 
I. President for 1 day. 

2. March 5, 1877 - Inauguration - 54 year old, 
C Republican, Rutherford B. Hayes - 19th 

President: 

( 

A) Born - 10/4/1822 - Delaware, Ohio. 
B) 1845 - Harvard. 
C) Lawyer. 
D) 1852 - Marries Lucy Webb: 

I. Will be the 1st to be called "The 1st Lady." 

E) 5 feet 8 'Y2 inches tall: 
I. 170 pounds. 
II. Beard. 

F) Civil War ••• Union Army. 
G) 1865 - U.S. House of Rep.'s - Ohio. 

H) 1868 - Governor - Ohio. 



( I) 1876 - Governor - Ohio. 

( 
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J) ULTRA Religious!! 
I. EVERY night ••• Family ••• Gospel Hymns. 

II. EVERY morning ••• Family ••• Prayer. 

K) Teetotlar ••• Bans all alcohol from the White 

House. 

L) 1st Telephone in the White House. 

M) January 17, 1893 - At age 70 - Dies. 



( 1877 (June) 
1. June 14, 1877 - Flag Day _1 st Commemorated. 

i 

\ 
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.....J~Ale 

1877 
The Salt War 

1. EI Paso, Texas: 
A) For years - People on both sides of the 

border gather salt from an area 105 miles 
east of EI Paso: 
I. Suddenly people realize the salt could be 

profitable! 

2. Late 1860's: 
A) Two groups form: 

I. "The Salt Ring": 
(1) Favor supporting candidates for local 

and state offices. 
II. "The Anti-Salt Ring": 

(1) Leader is Antonio Borajo, Priest from 
San Elizario. 

(2) He gets A.J. Fountain elected to the 
State Senate. 

(3) Wants Fountain to "locate" the salt 
deposits so that they can be taxed: 
a. When the taxes are paid he and 

Fountain will split the money!!! 
b. Fountain rejects the proposal! 



( 

3. Borajo joins forces with Luis Cardis and 
Charles Howard: 
A) Wants to prevent any legislation in regards 

to the salt deposits. 
B) Cardis is elected to the State Legislature. 
C) Howard becomes a District .Judge. 
D) Cardis and Howard argue over legislation: 

I. Howard publicly beats Cardis 
up ••••• twice! 

4. Issue becomes Anglo vs. Mexican ••••• in other 
words ••••• Howard vs. Borajo! 

5 • .June 1877 - Howard has surveyor, .John 
McBride, "locate" the salt deposits to his 
benefit: 
A) Howard puts up signs stating no salt to be 

taken without paying a fee! 

6. Ysleta, Texas - Mob grabs Howard: 
A) Prepare to lynch him! 
B) Released after posting a $13 thousand 

bond and promising never to return! 

7. Wednesday - October 10, 1877 - Howard 
returns to EI Paso: 
A) Armed with a double-barreled shotgun! 
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B) Walks into the E. Samuel Schultz Store: 
I. Kills Cardis with a blast from both 

barrelsl 
C) Flees to Mesilla, New Mexico. 

8. Mexican community is outragedl 

A) Mobs roam the streets of Ysleta, Socorro, 
and San Elizario. 

B) 25 Texas Rangers are sent to EI Paso to 
keep things quiet: 
I. Are under the command of Lt • .John 

Tays. 

9. Early December of 1877: 
A) Howard learns that wagons have left San 

Elizario headed for the salt depositsl 

10. Howard arrives in EI Paso: 
A) With Tays and the Rangers he heads for 

San Elizario to prosecute the trespassersl 

11. Wednesday - December 12, 1877 - Evening: 
A) Group reaches the Ranger Station at San 

Elizario. 
B) Surrounded by a mob led by Chico Barela 

and forced to take refugel 
C) Merchant, Charles Ellis attempts to reason 

with the mob: 



( I. He is roped, shot, stabbed twice in the 
heart, his throat cut ear to ear, and his 
body thrown down a well! 
(1) Two days later - Remains are 

returned in a gunny sack. 
(2) Hair, beard, and eye brows are 

scalped! 

12. Tays sends to Fort Bliss for help: 
A) 19 men head for San Elizario. 
B) Stopped by a strong force of Mexicans and 

forced to retreat! 

13. Meanwhile: 
A) In the buildings are: 

I. Tays. 
II. Howard. 
III. A woman. 
IV. 2 children. 
V. Mr. Loomis. 
VI. Mr. Loomis' servant. 
VII. John McBride. 
VIII. Merchant, John G. Atkinson. 

14. From Thursday, December 13th till 
Wednesday, December 19th 

- Siege: 
A) 3 Rangers are killed. 

( B) 2 Rangers are wounded. 
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C) Food, water, and ammunition run low. 

15. Under a flag of truce - Tays talks to the mob: 
A) They want Howard! 
B) Tays refuses! 
C) Howard volunteers to talk to the mob! 
D) Entire group surrenders! 
E) Howard, McBride, and Atkinson are 

grabbed: 
I. Taken to a wall and shot by a 9 man 

firing squad! 
F) The 3 bodies are mutilated! 

16. Later - 3 Mexicans involved are killed in 

retaliation: 
A) Last deaths of the Salt War! 



( 
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:r~Ale 

1877 
The Nez· Perce Indian War 

1. The Nez Perce Indians: 
A) Live: 

I. Pacific Northwest: 
(1) Where Washington, Oregon, and Idaho meet: 

a. Valley of the Clearwater River. 
b. Valley ·of the Salmon River. 
c. Valley of the Snake River. 

II. Ancestral home ••• Waliowa Valley. 
B) Named by the French Trappers: 

I. Means: "Pierced Nose." 
II. Some of the tribe wear ornamental shells in their 

noses. 
C) Traits: 

I. Devoted to peace. 
II. Friends of the Whites. 
III. Are semi-nomadic. 
IV. Hunt. 
V. Fish. 
VI. Farm. 
VII. Raise cattle. 
VIII. Raise Appaloosa horses: 

a. Are superb horsemen •. 

2. Chief Joseph: 
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A) Growing up ••• Called ••• HeinmotTooyalaket: 
I. "Thunder Rolling in the Mountains." 

B) 1871 - Chief of the Wallowa Band of the Nez Perce 
at age 30: 

I. Is devoted to peace. 
II. Has been named "Joseph" by a missionary: 

(1) He will convert to Christianity. 
C) His father has told him: "Never sell the bones of 

your father and mother." 
D) Is a military genius: 

I. Will hold the field longer, by out maneuvering the 
Army, than any other Indian in U.S. history! 

F) Traits: 
I. Wise. 
II. Kind. 
III. Eloquent. 
IV. Merciful. 
V. Handsome. 
VI. Very logical. 

3. Gold is discovered in an area of the Wallowa Valley: 
A) Leads to: 

I. Prospectors. 
II. Settlers. 
III. Ranchers. 

B) All on Indian land! 

( 4. 1874 - Brig. General, Oliver Otis Howard: 



( A) Arrives in Portland, Oregon: 

( 

I. To take command of the Department of the 
Columbia: 

(1) Has lost one arm in the Civil War. 
(2) Known as a "Bible Beater." 

5. 1875 - President U.S. Grant: 
A) Opens part of the Wallowa Valley Reservation: 

I. To White settlement. 

6. Trouble ••• Oregon ••• Waliowa Valley: 
A) A Nez Perce is shot and killed by a squatter: 

I. Dispute over a fence. 
B) ~oseph protests to Howard. 
C) Howard: "I'll listen no more to your drivel, the 

government says your tribe shall give up its claims 
to lands in Oregon and move to the Lapwai 
Reservation in Idaho. Yet you persist in defying the 
government. If you don't move your people away, 
I'll take the matter i"nto my own hands and make 
you suffer for your disobedience." 

7. Spring of 1877 - Government issues orders 
to: 

A) Government Agents, backed by the Army under 
Howard are ordered to move the Nez Perce out of 
the Wallowa Valley: 

I. To a reservation. 



( 8. May 1877 - Fort Lapwai - Howard meets with .Joseph: 

( 
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A) Tells him of the Government's decisionl 
B) Tells him the deadline to move is: 

I • .June 14, 1877. 
II • .Joseph has 30 days to move from the valley: 

(1) To the Lapwai Reservation. 
C) Howard gets into an argument with Nez Perce 

Priest, Toohoolhoolzote (Pile of Clouds): 
. I. Has him arrested and placed in the guardhouse. 

D) Rather than risk war ••• .Joseph decides to move. 

9. Early - .June 1877 - White Raiders: 
A) Run off several hundred prized Nez Perce ponies. 

10 • .June 10, 1877 - Meadow near Grangerville, Idaho: 
A) Several Nez Perce Chiefs assemble: 

I. The area is their traditional meeting ground. 
B) Notpresent ••• 32 year old, .Joseph: 

I. Is at Wallowa awaiting the birth of his child. 
C) Present are: 

I. 70 year old, White Bird •••• Peaceful. 
II. 45 year old, Looking Glass •••• Peaceful. 
III. Toohoolhoolzote •••• Over 70 •••• Peaceful. 

D) Speaking out is ••• A young belligerent warrior: 

I. From White Bird's band. 
II. Father has been killed by.Whites ••• Years before. 

III. Screams out for war: 
(1) Backed by his cousin, Red Moccasin top. 



( 

E) Conference ends. 

11. June 13, 1877 - In retaliation for the theft of the Nez 
Perce ponies: 

A) Braves ••• Swan Necklace, WahUtis, and a cousin: 
I. Kill a rancher named ••• Devine: 

(1) Scalp him. 
II. Kill and scalp another White ••• Henry Mason: 

(1) In the past he has whipped 2 of the 3 Nez Perce 
braves. 

B) The braves ride into the Nez Perce camp: 
I. Show off the trophies. 
II. Tell of the killings. 

C) White Bird mounts his horse: 
I. Rides among the lodges. 
II. Calls on the warriors to join him. 

D) Toolhoolhoolzote joins with the group. 
E) The party of 21 Nez Perce leave to kill Whites!! 

I. Over the next 2 days, 13th and 14th
, they kill 18 

Whites! 

12. The Nez Perce tribe votes for war. 

13. Many Nez Perce families flee to White Bird Canyon: 
A) Idaho - Along the" Salmon River. 
B) Joseph, his 35 year old, brother, Ollokot, and their 

followers go. 
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14. dune 15, 1877 - From Fort Lapwai - Howard sends 2 
troops of Cavalry - To punish or bring in the guilty 
parties: 

A) Captain David Perry - 110 Troopers - Civilian Guide, 
Ad Chapman.· 

15. dune 17, 1877 - The Battle of White Bird Creek or 
The Battle of White Bird Canyon: 

A) Early morning. 
B) Soldiers approach. 
C) Soldiers make camp. 
D) doseph and a truce party of 200 warriors 

approaches: 
I. White flag. 
II. Chapman's force fires on them wounding a 

warrior. 
III. Indians fire back killing an orderly. 

E) Indians now fire from everywhere: 
I. They know the terrain. 
II. Have set up the perfect ambush. 

F) Soldiers panic! 
G) Soldiers start retreating •••• Retreat becomes a route! 
H) Soldiers lose 1/3 of the force killed or wounded: 

I. 36 - Killed. 
II. 4 - Wounded. 

I) Indians have lost only 2 wounded! 
d) Soldier dead are NOT scalped, mutilated, or 

stripped: 
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I. Only their weapons and ammunition are takenl 

16. Joseph is now joined by: 
A) Chief Five Wounds. 
B) Chief Rainbow. 

17. The Battle of Clear Creek: 
A) Chief Looking Glass is peacefully camped on Clear 

Creek: 
I. Sends word to Howard: 

(1 )He is NOT hostile. 
(2) He will soon report. 

B) Howard makes a big mistake: 
I. Sends a force under Captain Stephen Whipple to 

bring them in: 
(1) One troop of Cavalry. 
(2) Party of Civilian Volunteers. 

C) Whipple meets with Looking Glass: 
I. A Civilian Volunteer fires into the Indian camp: 

(1) Kills a child. 
D) Firing breaks out everywhere: 

I. Whipple opens fire with a Gatling Gun. 
E) Warriors and 150 women and children flee. 
F) Joseph. attacks Whipple: . 

I. Whipple is about to be routedl 
II. Howard and a force arrives saving Whipple. 

( 18. Looking Glass now joins with Joseph: 
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A) ,",oseph now has: 
I. 250 - Warriors. 
II. 450 - Women, Children, and Old. 

B) ,",oseph knows he has to retreat North. 

19. ,",uly 11 & 12, 1877 - The Battle of Clearwater River: 
A) Howard is in pursuit of ,",oseph: 

I. 500 - Soldiers. 
II. 200 - Indian Scouts, Teamsters, Packers, and 

other Civilians. 
B) ,",uly 11 th - Hot day - Almost 300 Warriors wait in 

ambush: 
I. Howard attacks! 
II. Nez Perce, under Tool, counterattack. 
III. Soldiers are stopped solidly! 
IV. Another Nez Perce force hits Howard from the 

rear! 
V. Artillery under Captain Marcus Miller opens fire: 

(1) Hits his own men!!! 
VI. Night falls: 

(1) Both sides stop fighting. 
C) ,",uly 12th - Fighting resumes - Goes on until mid­

afternoon: 
I. Nez Perce Warriors retreat and re-join their 

families: 
(1) On the opposite side of the river. 

D) Indian losses: 
I. 23 - Killed. 
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II. 46 - Wounded. 
E) Soldier losses: 

I. 13 - Killed. 
II. 27 - Wounded. 

20. Nez Perce decide to go east: 
A) Cross the Bitteroot Mountains. 
B) Join up with the Crows in Montana. 
C) Joseph opposes this move ••• BUT: 

I. He is out-voted! 
D) Looking Glass is made the War Chief. 

21. Howard follows the Nez Perce: 
A) He is 200 miles behind. 

22. The Nez Perce reach Stevensville, Montana: 
A) DO NOT pillage! 
B) BUY supplies!! 

23. The Nez Perce reach the Big Hole Valley of Montana. 

24. Meanwhile -Fort Shaw in Helena, Montana - Colonel 
John Gibbon gets orders from Howard: 

A) Take up pursuit of the Nez Perce. 
B) Gibbon heads out: 

I. Gains recruits along the way. 

\ 25. Gibbon sends Lt. James Bradley & 2 others: 
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A) To scout the Big Hole Valley. 
B) They will find the Nez Perce camp: 
. I • .Joseph ancl 89 Indian Lodges. 
II. 200 Warriors. 

C) Send word back to Gibbon. 

26. August 8, 1877 - Gibbon arrives at the Big Hole: 
A) Has 200 soldiers. 
B) They descend to the tree line at the base of the 

Mountains: 
I. Are % of a mile from the Indian camp. 

C) Plan: 
I. Assault the camp at dawn. 

27. August 9, 1877 - The Battle of the Big Hole: 
A) Early morning: 

I. Old Warrior, Natalekin, rides out to tend the horse 
herd. 

II. Is at the east end of the meadow. 
III. He rides into the middle of some soldiers. 
IV. They open fire ••• Kill him and his horse! 
V. The battle has started! 

B) The Soldiers are 200 yards from the village. 
C) Braves take up positions in the tree line along the 

river. 
D) Indian women and children are being killed. 
E) Lt. Bradley and the Scouts enter the east end of the 

village: 
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I. Bradley is shot and killed. 
II. Brave who shoots him is shot and killed by the 

Scouts. 
III. Captain William Logan kins a Brave. 
IV. The Brave's sister takes her dead brother's pistol 

and kills Logan. 
V. She is then shot and killed by the Scouts. 

F) After 20 minutes - The Soldiers control the village: 
I. 60 Indians ·are dead: 

(1) Most are women and children! 
G) Joseph gives orders to his brother, Ollokot, White 

Bird, and Looking Glass: 
I. Rally the Warriors in the ~illows. 
II. Prepare for an attack. 

H) The Nez Perce start picking out the officers: 
I. At a range of 100 to 200 yards. 
II. Start picking them off. 

I) Soldiers charge: 
I. Beaten back! 

J) Fighting in the woods is hand-to-hand! 
I. Gibbon is wounded in the hip. 

K) Because the Soldiers in the village are out of 
ammunition: 

I. He orders them to retreat! 
II. BUT, to where?????? 

L) The Soldiers retreat to the timber: 
I. Start digging rifle pits and trenches in a 30 by 60 

yard area! 
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II. Are constantly under fire from the Nez Perce. 
M) Soldiers are out of water! 
N) The Indians re-take the village! 
0) Fighting in the timber at some places is less than 

10 yards! 
P) Night: 

I. Gibbon sends messengers to try and find Howard: 
(1) Howard is 17 miles from Big Hole. 

II. Howitzer and wagons arrive: 
(1) Set up - Fire 2 shots. 
(2) 30 Braves charge the Howitzer: 

a. Kill the gunner. 
b. Wound 2 others~ 
c. Destroy the cannon by rolling it down the 

mountain. 
III. Most of the Indians strip the camp and flee. 
IV. A few Warriors continue to snipe throughout the 

night. 
Q) August 10th 

- At sunset -·Supply Wagon arrives. 
R) Soldier losses: 

I. 31 - Killed. 
II. 38 -Wounded. 

S) Nez Perce losses: 
I. 89 - Killed: 

(1 )50 are women and children! 
(2) 2 of the dead are .Joseph's wives. 
(3) Looking Glass •••• Kilied. 
(4) Rainbow •••• Kilied. 
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(5) Five Wounds •••• Kilied. 
(6) Shore Crossing •••• Kilied. 
(7) Red Moccasin Tops •••• Kilied. 

T) August 11 th - Morning - Howard arrives. 

28. Joseph decides to head for Canada: 
A) During that retreat •••• The Nez Perce: 

I. Raid ranches for food. 
II. Kill livestock Howard might be able to use. 

. III. Any White that resists is killed. 
IV. Leave their very old behind provided with food 

and water: 
(1) When Howard's Bannock Indian Scouts find 

them ••• AII of the old are killed and scalped. 

29. August 20, 1877 - Night - Joseph and 40 Warriors -
In Cavalry columns of 4: 

A) Ride into Howard's campi 
B) Guards believe they are returning Indian Scoutsl 
C) Ride past the guardsl . 
D) Stampede the. horses and mulesl 
E) Kill anyone running out oftentsl 
F) Chased by 3 troops of Cavalryl 
G) Nez Perce ambush them at Camus Meadows in the 

Lava Beds: 
I. Indians get awayl 
II. Stops Howardl 



30. The Crows refuse to help the Nez Perce: 
A) Nez Perce are now on their own. 
B) Some of the Crows will actually help Howard acting 

as Scoutsl 

31. Some of the younger Nez Perce Warriors start killing 
non-offending Whites: 

A) Kill 2 White men and 1 Black cook. 

32. Nez Perce emerge from the mountains northwest of 
Cody, Wyoming: 

A) Headed for Canada. 
B) Chased by: 

I. The 5th Cavalry ••• From the Little Bighorn region. 
II. The 7th Cavalry ••• From the Yellowstone Valley. 
III. Howard ••• From the rear. 

33. At this point - NezPerce Scouts - Make a huge 
mistake - Spot a patrol under Lt. Hugh Scott: 

A) In front of them. 
B) Believe them to be the main Cavalry body. 
C) Tell Joseph. 
D) He swings the Indians miles to the west to avoid. 
E) Those added miles will spell defeatll 

34. Telegraph Lines and the Railroads put more and 
more men and Soldiers in the field after theml 



( 35. September 13, 1877 -The Battle of Canyon Creek: 

( 

A) 13 miles west of Billings, Montana. 
B) 350 troopers of the 7th Cavalry under Colonel 

Samuel Sturgis catch up to -Joseph. 
C) -Joseph sets up a rear-guard ambush: 

I. While the women and children get away. 
D) Cavalry charges: 

I. -Joseph hits them from both sides. 
II. Cavalry dismounts and fights on foot. 
III. -Joseph retreats. 

E) Soldier losses: 
I. 3 - Killed. 
II. 12 - Wounded. 

Fl Nez Perce losses: 
I. 25 - Killed & Wounded. 
II. BUT ••• Have also lost 300 Ponies. 

36. Nez Perce reach a meadow 7 miles to the north of 
Bear's Paw Mountain: 

A) Camp to rest. 
B) Are only 35 miles from Canada. 

37. From the east ~ Out of Fort Keogh, Wyoming -
Colonel Nelson Miles has been on the move: 

A) 6 companies of the 5 th Infantry. 
B) 5 troops of Cavalry. 
C) 100 Indian Scouts. 

( D) 2 Field Guns & Wagons. 



( 38. September 30, 1877 - The Battle of Bear's Paw: 

( 

A) 1 day from Canada. 
B) Early morning. 
C) Miles arrives - Men are exhausted! 
D) Cavalry starts it's charge against the village from 4 

miles away. 
E) A Nez Perce boy warns the village. 
F) Nez Perce stop the charge at POINT BLANK range!!! 

I. 53 out of 115 Cavalrymen are killed or wounded. 
II. Rest retreat. 

G) Another Cavalry unit stampedes 800 Nez Perce 
horses and mules. 

H) Warriors dig in. 
I) Hand-to-hand fighting against the Infantry: 

I. Soldiers retreat. 
J) Day ends: 

I. Among the Nez Perce dead are: 
(1) Joseph's brother.~.Ollokot. 

K) Night - Heavy snow .... Blizzard. 
L) Joseph sends a plea for help to Canada to Sitting 

Bull: 
I. Answer will be •••• No!! 

M) Siege for Day #2 & "Day #3. " 

N) October 3, 1877 - Day #4: 
I. Looking Glass is shot thru the head and killed. 
II. Howard arrives. 
III. Night ••• Miles positions his men around Bear's 

Paw Mountain. 
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0) October 4, 1877 - Day #5 - .Joseph - Flag of truce: 
I. Has only 87 Warriors left: 

(1) 40 of them are wounded. 
II. Has 184 women & 147 children left: 

(1) Many of them are wounded. 
III. The entire group is suffering from stress and 

hunger. 
IV. Sunset - Hands his rifle to Miles: "From where 

the sun now stands, 1 will fight no more forever!" 

39. Summary: 
A) 3 Y2 month chase. 
B) Covers over 1,600 miles. 
C) Have fought off 5,000 Soldiers. 
D) Have fought off Civilians & Militia. 
E) Have killed 270 of the enemy. 
F) Has never had more than 300 Warriors. 
G) Has suffered 240 killed and wounded. 
H) NOT counting property daniage ••• The war has cost 

the U.S. $2 million!!! 

40. A few of the Nez Perce have escaped into Canada: 
A) Rest ••• To Bismarck •••• Fed. 

41. Howard and Miles promise them they will be 
returned to Idaho and will be allowed to re-settle in 
Oregon. 



( 42. Instead ••• Shipped to Fort Leavenworth, Kansas: 
A) 100 will die here! 

43. Shipped to ••• The Indian Territory (Oklahoma): 
A) Within 1 year •••• 1/3 of them are dead! 

44. 1882 - Due to the efforts of Nelson Miles: 
A) Joseph and a few followers are allowed to return to 

the Pacific Northwest. 

45. 1885 - Only 287 Nez Perce are left alive: 
A) Some are allowed to return to the Lapwai 

Reservation. 
B) NOT ..... oseph: 

I. He and 150 followers are taken to the Colville 
Reservation in Washington. 

46. September 21, 1904 - Joseph dies. 



( 1878 
1. George Eastman: 

A) Invents the Photographic Dry Plate. 

B) Makes the Film-Roll Camera possible. 

\ 



( 1878 
William Barclay "Bat" Masterson 

1. Born - 1856. 

2. Traits: 
A) Fearless. 
B) Good shot. 
C) Good in a gunfight. 
D) Will carry 2 ivory handled Colts. 

3. Buffalo Hunter: 
A) At age 18 - Involved in the Battle of Adobe 

( Walls. 

I 
\ 

4. Sweetwater, Texas - U.S. Army Scout: 
A) While here - Kills his 1st man. 

5. Dodge City, Kansas - Becomes good friends 
with Wyatt Earp. 

6. 1878 - At age 22 - Ford County, Kansas: 
A) Becomes Sheriff. 
B) Helps capture Train Robber, Dave 

Rudabaugh. 

7. Tombstone, Arizona: 



( 
\. 

A) Works for Wyatt Earp as a card dealer in 
The Oriental Saloon. 

B) Fancy dresser and a ladies man. 

8. 1883 - Dodge City, Kansas: 
A) Works for Earp as a Deputy. 
B) ~ack Warner and Alf Walker kill his brother, 

Ed: 
I. He kills both of them. 

9. Trinidad, Colorado: 
A) Runs a Gambling House. 

10. Appointed U.S. Marshal of the state of New 
York by President Theodore Roosevelt. 

11. Sports Editor for "The New York Morning 
Telegram" newspaper: 

A) 1921 - At age 65 - At his desk at work -
Dies of a heart attack! 



( 

( 

( 

1878 
The Bannock Indian War 

1. Southeastern Idaho: 
A) Bannock Reservation is on the upper Snake 

River: 
I. Own the rights to the Camas Prairie: 

(1) Camas Plant ••• Lily Family ••• Onion­
Shaped root bulb. 

(2) Important part of the Bannock Diet. 

2. Late Annuity payment - Bannocks are starving: 
A) Whites take over the Camas Prairie. 

3. Bannocks fight back! 
A) Chief Buffalo Horn & Warriors wound 2 

Herders. 

4. Fighting is over by October 1878: 
A) 9 Soldiers & 31 Civilians killed ••••• 40. 
B) 78 Bannocks for sure killed ••• Probably many 

more. 
C) Remaining 600 Bannocks ~re taken to Fort 

Simcoe, Washington: 



I. Held for 2 years. 
II. Are allowed to go back. 

i , 



1878 (January) 
1. New Haven, Connecticut: 

A) 1st Telephone Exchange. 
B) 21 Subscribers. 

( 



February 1878 
The Lincoln County, New Mexico War 

(Lincoln County, New Mexico) 
1. Established in 1869: 

A) Covers one-quarter of the entire New Mexico 
Territory! 

B) North to South ••••• 170 miles. 
C) East to West ••••• 150 miles. 
D) No large towns. 
E) No towns of commercial importance. 

( 

2. Town of ••• Lincoln ••• County Seat: 
A) Picked as such because it is close to Fort 

Stanton. 
B) Town ••• Mexican in appearance. 
C) Town ••• Mexican in nature. 
D) 40 to 50 Adobe Houses. 
E) Population of less than 400 people. 



C (1875 - Corru~tion in County) 
1. Concerning financial matters: 

A) County has paid no Territorial Taxes for 2 
years! 

2. Probate Judge of Lincoln County is Lawrence 
Murphy: 

A) Born in Ireland. 

B) Has studied for the Priesthood. 

C) Comes to America. 
D) Serves in U.S. Army. 

E) Comes to Santa Fe, New Mexico. 
( F) Civil War ••• 1st New Mexico Volunteers: 

( 

I. 1862 - Serves under Kit Carson in the 1st 

New Mexico Cavalry. 

II. Fights in the Battle of Valverde. 

G) 1863 - Fights in the Navajo Indian War. 

H) 1866 - Leaves the Army as a Major. 

3. Murphy and his corrupt Political buddies have 

collected the $20 thousand in Taxes: 

A) Split the money up!!! 
B) Claim the recently deceased Sheriff collected 

and spent it!! 



( 

4. Governor demands the truth: 
A) Murphy resigns. 

B) BUT, the Governor fails to act on the 
resignation: 

I. SO ••• Murphy remains as Probate Judge AND, 

Political Boss of Lincoln County!! 

5. Murphy owns a store in the town of Lincoln: 

A) Wants to be the sole supplier of goods to the 

Indians in the area. 
B) Indian Bureau in Washington refuses to grant 

Murphy that right! 

C) Murphy offers the Agent of the Mescalero 
Reservation a deal: 

I. Split money for goods NOT delivered!! 

(1) Agent refuses to go along with the 
scheme! 

D) Murphy peddles illegal whiskey to the 

Indians: 
I. Agent moves the Indians away from Fort 

Stanton and Murphy!! 

(1) Murphy is outraged! 

E) February 2, 1875 - Murphy circulates a 

petition: 
I. To get rid of the Agent. 



( F) Petition is sent to President Grant: 

I. Congressional investigation. 
II. Agent is cleared. 

G) Murphy continues to harass the Agent: 

I. 1876 ••• Disgusted ••• Agent resigns. 

H) New Agent: 

I. Totally corrupt! 

II. Becomes a "Murphy Man." 



( 

( 

( 

(John Chisum) 
1. Claims 200 miles of land up and down the Pecos 

Valley in Lincoln County. 

2. Has been in the Cattle business for 30 years in 
Texas & New Mexico. 

3. Is virtually the "Cattle King of New Mexico": 
A) Shrewd. 
B) Masterful. 
C) Uses rough means to protect his interest 

against Cattle Rustlers. 

4. 1875 - Sells out to the firm of Hunter & Evans: 
A) For $250 thousand. 
B) For the next 2 years ••• Gathers cattle to send 

to the firms locations in Kansas & Arizona. 
C) For this reason ••• Rustlers think he will be 

more lax! 
D) Theft of his cattle increases! 
E) He has to deliver ••• SO ••• Treatment of Rustlers 

becomes more harsh! 

5. Most of the Cattle Rustlers are on the Murphy 

payroll!! 



( 6. Chisum hates Murphy ••••• Murphy hates Chisum! 

( 

7. Late 1876 - Chisum learns of suspicious 
activities at the Beckwith Ranch: 
A) Chisum's brother, Pitzer, and foreman Jim 

Highsaw take several Cowboys to check out 
the Ranch: 

I. Find several hundred cattle ears buried. 
II. Have the Chisum mark!! ••••• Stolen!!! 

8. February 1877 - Chisum finds out that some of 
his cattle have been sold in EI Paso, Texas: 
A) He and Highsaw go to EI Paso. 
B) Recover some of the cattle. 
C) Get physical descriptions of the men who 

sold the cattle. 
D) Return to Lincoln. 

9. March 28, 1877 - Highsaw confronts Dick Smith: 
A) Fits one of the physical descriptions. 
B) Smith goes for his gun. 
C) Highsaw shoots him five times with his .45 

killing the Rustler! 

( 10. Few days later - 20 of Smith's friends: 



( A) Go to Chisum's South Springs River Ranch. 

B) To kill Highsaw. 

C) Find a Chisum Cowboy "Army" more than 
ready!! 

D) Rustlers leave!! 

11. Chisum learns: 
A) Rustler leaders are: 

I. Bob Beckwith & W.H. Johnson: 

(1) Both "Murphy Men." 



( (The L.G. Murphy & Company Store) 
1. In the town of Lincoln. 

( 

( 

2. Mercantile Firm: 
A) Originally called "Murphy and Fritz": 

I. After the 2 owners ••• Murphy and Emil Fritz: 
(1) Both men are members of "The Santa Fe 

Ring" ••••• Covered later. 
B) Fritz: 

I. Gets TB. 
II. Summer - 1873 - Back to Germany. 
III. June 26, 1874 - Dies. 
IV. This will later cause problems. 

3. Store is called "The Murphy Store" or "The 

House": 
A) 2 story structure. 
B) Ground Floor: 

I. Store - Offices - Gambling Rooms - Saloon. 

C) Top Floor: 
I. Living quarters - Meeting rooms. 

4. Later ••• Becomes The Lincoln County 

Courthouse. 



( (James "Jimmie" Dolan) 
1. Born in Ireland: 

A) Age 5 - To America. 

B) Clerk - New York Dry Goods Store. 

C) Civil War ••• Union Army ••• For 5 years. 

D) Works as a Clerk for "Murphy & Fritz." 
E) Murphy treats him like a son. 

F) Becomes as corrupt as Murphy. 
G) Arrogant. 

H) Obnoxious. 

I) Schemer. 

\ 2. Summer - 1873 - Fort Stanton: 

( 

A) Threatens to kill a Captain. 

B) Army forces them to remove their trading 

branch from the Fort! 

3. After the death of Fritz: 
A) Murphy makes him a Junior Partner in the 

Store. 



( (The Corruption of James J. Dolan) 

( 

1. Due to heavy drinking and poor health: 
A) Murphy retires from active participation in 

Lincoln County affairs. 
B) Murphy turns the store over to Dolan. 

2. March 1877 - Store becomes "J.J. Dolan and 
Company." 

3. Dolan takes on 2 Junior Partners: 
A) John Riley. 
B) Jacob "Billy" Matthews: 

I. Silent Partner. 
II. Will spy for Dolan. 

4. The "Company" is constantly involved in 
fraudulent deals with: 

A) The people of Lincoln! 
I. Are despotic. 
II. Are oppressive. 
III. Use credit as a Blackmail tool! 

B) The Indians! 
C) The Government! 

5. Support for Dolan is because: 



( A) He grants political favors. 

( 

B) He gives credit at his store. 
C) He hates John Chisum. 

6. Dolan has beef contracts to fill: 
A) He does it with stolen cattle! 
B) His "Company" owns a cattle camp near 

Seven Rivers! 
C) The Jesse Evans Gang is on his payroll: 

I. They are the biggest cattle rustlers in 
Lincoln County. 

II. They are paid by Dolan to steal Chisum 
cattle! 

7. By 1877 - Dolan & his Associates: 
A) Dominate nearly all of Lincoln County 

politically and commercially. 
B) Are arrogant. 
C) Are boastful. 
D) Install hand-picked men in County offices. 

E) Control the Territorial Court. 
F) Control District Attorney, William Rynerson. 
G) Involved with the totally corrupt U.S. District 

Attorney of the New Mexico Territory: 

I. Thomas Catron: 



( (1) He is located in Santa Fe. 

(2) He is a member of the "Santa Fe Ring." 
(3) From 1870 to 1890 he virtually rules the 

New Mexico Territory like a dictator. 

H) Involved with the very corrupt Governor of 

the New Mexico Territory: 

I. Samuel Axtell: 
(1) Governor since July 1875. 

(2) Member of "The Santa Fe Ring." 



( ("The Santa Fe Ring") 

( 

1. Group of corrupt Republican politicians: 

A) Have a throat-hold politically and 

economically on the New Mexico Territory! 

2. The Dolan faction in Lincoln County is a 

miniature "Ring." 



( 

(Alexander McSween) 
1. From Scotland: 

A) Born - 1843. 
B) Well educated. 
C) Comes to America. 
D) Lawyer. 
E) 1873 - Marries. 
F) Suffers from Chronic Asthma. 
G) Is a man of high professional ideals. 
H) Is aggressive. 
I) Is ambitious. 

J) March 3, 1875 - The McSween's arrive in 
Lincoln. 

2. Becomes a good friend of John Chisum: 
A) Becomes Chisum's lawyer. 

3. In Lincoln: 
A) He encourages the construction of public 

buildings. 
B) He encourages the construction of churches. 
C) He encourages the construction of schools. 

4. Grows to hate the Dolan faction & The Santa Fe 

Ring! 



( (John Tunstall) 
1. Born in England: 

A) 1873 - Arrives in California. 
B) Very wealthy. 
C) November 1876 - Age 23 - Arrives in Lincoln. 

2. Becomes good friends with McSween & Chisum. 

3. Builds a store in Lincoln: 
A) Is in direct competition with the Dolan Store! 
B) Gives McSween the west end of the store: 

I. For a Law Office. 
( C) Because of HONESTY: 

I. People support it in a big way! 

4. Later - Makes McSween a partner in the store. 

5. Both men are HATED by the Dolan Faction! 

6. Opens a Bank in Lincoln: 
A) "The Lincoln County Bank." 
B) Backed by Chisum. 
C) President ••• Chisum. 
D) Vice President ••• McSween. 

E) Cashier ••• Tunstali. 



F) Is an HONEST bank: 

I. People support it in a big way! 

7. Tunstall expands his Ranch: 
A) Hires men to run it for him. 

B) Foreman ••• Dick Brewer. 

C) Men like: 

I. John Middleton. 

II. Fred Waite. 

III. Many others. 
D) One of those hired is: "Billy, The Kid." 



( 

( 

( 

(Henry McCarty - "Billy, The Kid") 
1. Born - 11/23/1859 - Slums - New York City: 

A) Father - Michael - Dies. 
B) Mother - Catherine - Has TB. 
C) One Brother. 

2. June 1870 - Mother takes the 2 boys and heads 
west. 

3. July 1870 - Reach Coffeyville, Kansas: 
A) Mother "lives" with William Bonney for a 

period of time. 

4. Move to Wichita, Kansas. 

5. September 12, 1870 - Wichita - Mother buys a 
vacant lot on Chisholm Street. 

6. February 1871 - William Henry Harrison Antrim: 
A) Buys the vacant lot next to Mrs. McCarty's. 

7. June 28, 1871 - Antrim deeds his vacant lot to 

Mrs. McCarty: 
A) She builds a 2 story structure: 

I. Bottom floor is a laundry she runs. 



( 

( 

II. Top floor is their living quarters. 

8. March 1, 1873 - Santa Fe, New Mexico: 

A) First Presbyterian Church. 

B) Antrim & Catherine McCarty are married. 

9. TB gets worse - Confined to a bed for 4 months: 

A) September 16, 1874 - She dies! 

10. Henry lives with Mr. & Mrs. Del Truesdell: 

A) They own "The Star Hotel." 

A) Waits tables and washes dishes. 

11. At age 14 - Moves to Silver City, New Mexico: 
A) Friends with George Shaffer: 

I. Alias: "Sombrero Jack." 
B) Shaffer steals some laundry from Charley Sun 

& Sam Chung: 
I. Asks Henry to hide it. 

II. Henry does so. 
C) He is arrested for hiding the laundry: 

I. Jail. 
II. Escapes up the chimney. 

III. Heads for Arizona. 



( 12. Works for 2 years as a Teamster. 

13. Spring 1876 - Arrives in Fort Grant, Arizona: 
A) Is known as: 

I. "Henry Antrim." 
II. "Billy Antrim." 

III. "Kid." 
IV. "Billy." 
V. "Billy, The Kid." 

B) Learns to drink, gamble, swear, shoot a rifle 
and pistol pretty well! 

( 14. 5 feet 7 'V2 inches tall - 130 pounds: 
A) Thin. 
B) Light Brown Hair. 
e) Blue Eyes. 
D) Small Hands. 
E) Always Grinning. 

F) Good-Natured. 

G) Carefree. 
H) Loves to Sing & Dance. 

I) Speaks fluent Spanish. 

15. Is almost constantly tormented by Frank 

"Windy" Cahill: 



( A) NOT a true "Blacksmith"!!! 

I. "Blacksmithing" - Slang term for Pimping. 
B) Runs a Saloon & Brothel. 

C) Loud-Mouthed ••• Obnoxious ••• Bully!! 

D) Likes to slap the Kid around ••• Throw him 

down ••• Sit on him ••• Humiliate him!!! 

16. August 17, 1877 - George Atkins' Cantina: 
A) Words are exchanged between Cahill and the 

Kid: 

I. Cahill calls the Kid a "pimp." 
II. Kid calls Cahill a "son-of-a-bitch." 

B) They wrestle on the floor. 

C) Told to go outside. 

D) Cahill throws the Kid downl 

E) Kid grabs Cahill's gun: 
I. Shoots Cahill in the stomach. 

F) Kid flees. 
G) Next day ••• Cahili dies. 

H) Kid heads for New Mexico. 

17. By October 1877 - He is known as: 

A) "William Bonney." 

B) "Billy, The Kid." 



( 18. Arrives in Lincoln County, New Mexico: 
A) Works for John Chisum. 

B) Becomes good friends with George Coe. 

C) Goes to work for John Tunstall. 



( (September thru December - 1877) 
1. September 18, 1877 - Seven members of the 

Jesse Evans Gang: 
A) Steal $1,700 worth of horses and mules from 

Tunstall's Ranch. 

2. October 1877 - Tunstall receives news: 
A) Gang is held up at Beckwith's Ranch: 

I. On Seven Rivers. 

3. William Brady - Sheriff of Lincoln: 
A) TOTALLY corrupt! 

( B) TOTALLY a Dolan man! 

4. Tunstall finally persuades Sheriff Brady to arrest 

the men: 
A) BUT, Tunstall has to pay for the posse!!!! 

5. 4 of the Gang are arrested: 
A) Placed in the Lincoln Jail. 
B) November 1877 - The 4 "escape." 

6. Brady and Tunstall confront each other: 

A) In McSween's house. 
B) Brady accuses Tunstall of: 



( I. Giving public credit for the arrest of the 4 
men to Dick Brewer! 

C) Tunstall calls Brady ••• A liar!!! 

I. AND, accuses him of helping the 4 escape! 
D) Brady reaches for his pistol! 

E) McSween steps between the 2 men! 

I. Reminds Brady he is an officer of the law! 

F) Brady: "Tunstall, I won't shoot you now, but 
you don't have long to run. I ain't always 

gonna' be Sheriff!" 
G) Brady leaves. 

( 7. Has been an ongoing feud: 
A) Between Mrs. Fritz and the Murphy/Dolan 

Faction. 

B) Over who gets her dead husband's $10 
thousand life insurance money!!! 

C) The Murphy/Dolan Faction claim it is theirs 

because: 
I. Debts owed to them by Fritz when he died. 

II. The claim is an outright LIE!!! 

(1) Fritz owed them nothing! 

D) McSween settles the case. 
E) In favor of Mrs. Fritz. 
F) Murphy & Dolan have McSween arrested: 



/ 
( 

{ 

" 

\ 
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I. Phony charge of embezzlement! 

G) Goes to court: 
I. McSween defends himself! 

II. Not guilty! 
III. Mrs. Fritz gets her money! 

8. Short time later - McSween is charged again!!! 

A) Tunstall's store, cattle, and horses are taken 

as security. 
B) Tunstall is not going to stand for this 

legalized robbery. 



( (February thru March 1878) 

( 

1. Monday - February 18, 1878 - Tunstall leaves 
his Ranch: 
A) Heads for Lincoln. 
B) With him are: 

I. Dick Brewer. 
II. Billy, The Kid. 
III. 2 others. 

C) 5:00 - Afternoon: 
I. Brewer and one other ride off after Wild 

Turkeys. 
II. The Kid and the other Cowboy are 500 

yards behind Tunstall: 
(1) He is out of their sight. 

D) Tunstall is charged by a Dolan Posse of 23 

men: 
I. They are firing. 
II. Brewer, The Kid, and the other 2 Cowboys 

take cover. 
E) Tunstall stops: 

I. Puts his hands in the air. 
II. One of the group takes careful aim with a 

rifle ••• Fires ••• Blows him out of his saddle! 
III. Another member of the group gets off his 

horse: 



( 

(1) Walks up ••• Takes Tunstall's pistol. 
(2) Blows off the back of his head! 
(3) THEN, crushes what is left of his head 

with a rock! 
F) Group rides off! 

2. That night - 11 :00 - In Lincoln: 
A) The Kid and Robert Widenman: 

I. Spread word of Tunstall's murder. 

3. McSween appeals to Fort Stanton for help: 
A) Answer is "No!!" 
B) Fort Commander is in sympathy with the 

Dolan Faction! 

4. 60 men meet at the McSween House: 
A) Swear to avenge the murder of Tunstall. 

5. Warrants are issued for 6 members of the 

"Posse": 
A) Sheriff Brady refuses to honor the warrants: 

I. Says it was a legal "Posse." 

6. Dolan requests soldiers from Fort Stanton to 

protect his store: 



( A) They are sent! 

7. "The Regulators" are formed: 

A) To bring Tunstall's murderers to justice. 
B) Primary members: 

I. Billy, The Kid. 

II. Dick Brewer. 

III. Hendry Brown. 
IV. Charlie Bowdre. 
V. Frank McNab. 

VI. John Middleton. 

VII. Sam Smith. 

VIII. Jim French. 

IX. Doc Scurlock. 

C) Group is legalized by Justice of the Peace, 
Wilson. 

8. March 6, 1878 - Regulators learn where 6 
members of the Murder Posse are hiding: 

A) Surprise them! 

B) Running gunfight. 

C) 3 of the 6 get away. 

D) 3 captured. 
E) Regulators and the 3 head back for Lincoln. 

\ F) Will be told: 



\ 

I. There is a large Dolan group on the way to 
liberate the 3. 

9. March 9, 1878 - Regulators shoot the 3 men to 

death! 

10. March 31, 1878 - Tunstall's Store: 

A) Billy, The Kid and 5 others meet. 
B) Plot to kill Sheriff William Brady & George 

Hindman. 



( (April 1878) 
1. Monday - April 1, 1878 - Lincoln - Brady, 

Hindman, and 3 others are walking past the 
Tunstall Store: 

A) From behind an Adobe Wall. 

B) Massive volley of rifle shots into the group. 

C) Brady & Hindman are killed. 

D) 1 other is wounded. 

E) In the return fire ••• The Kid and 1 other 

Regulator are wounded. 
F) Regulators leave town and hide. 

( 2. Thursday - April 4, 1878 - Blazer's Mill - 11 :00 -

( 

Morning - 13 Regulators ride up: 

A) To have breakfast. 

B) The Group: 
I. The Kid. 

II. Dick Brewer. 

III. Frank Coe. 

IV. George Coe. 
V. John Middleton. 

VI. Charlie Bowdre. 

VII. Jake Scoggins. 

VIII. Doc Scurlock. 
IX. "Dirty" Steve Stephens. 



( 

x. 4 others. 

C) Dolan Man, Andy "Buckshot" Roberts, rides 
Up: 

I. Useless left arm ••• From an old buckshot 
blast. 

II. Uses a rifle. 

III. Part of the "Posse" that has murdered 
Tunstall. 

D) Frank Coe yells at him to surrender! 

E) Yells back: "Hell no!" 
F) Brewer sends 5 to place him under arrest: 

I. The Kid. 

II. Charlie Bowdre. 

III. George Coe. 

IV. John Middleton. 

V. Steve Stephens. 

G) Roberts jumps up. 

H) Roberts, Bowdre, and The Kid, all fire at 

once: 
I. Bowdre's gun belt is shot off! 

II. George Coe's trigger finger is shot off! 

III. Middleton is shot thru the right lung! 

IV. The Kid's right arm is grazed! 

V. Stephens is shot and killed! 
VII. Roberts has been hit in the stomach: 



( 

(1) By The Kid. 

(2) Enters 2 inches left of Robert's navel. 
(3) Exits above his right hip. 

I) Holding his stomach ••• Roberts ducks into one 
of the buildings. 

J) Regulators take cover. 

K) Roberts places a mattress across the door: 
I. With a Springfield Rifle, he opens fire. 

L) Siege. 

M) 175 yards from Roberts' position: 
I. Brewer ••• Behind a stack of logs. 

II. Raises head to "look." 
III. Roberts fires! 

IV. Bullet enters Brewer's right eye ••• Blows 
out the back of his head, killing him!· 

V. 27 year old ••• Dick Brewer ••• ls dead!! 

N) Remaining Regulators retreat. 

0) 2 hour battle is over. 
P) Roberts dies the next day of his wounds. 

3. Territorial Court: 
A) Issues warrants for the arrest of: 

I. The murderers of: 

(1) Tunstall: 

a. Names: 



* Jesse Evans. 

*George Davis. 
*Miguel Seguro. 

*Frank Rivers. 

*James Dolan ••• Accessory. 

*Billy Mathews ••• Accessory. 
(2) Brady & Hindman: 

a. Names: 

*The Kid. 

*John Middleton. 

*Fred Waite. 

*Hendry Brown. 
(3) Roberts: 

a. Names: 

*Charlie Bowdre. 

4. Frank McNab: 

A) Takes Brewer's place as head of the 
Regulators. 

B) Issues a warning to all cattle thieves in 
Lincoln County ••• To get out! 

5. The cattle thieves, rustlers, all Dolan Men: 

A) Head for Lincoln: 
I. To do away with the Regulators. 



6. April 30, 1878 - Frank McNab, Frank Coe, and Ab 
Sanders: 

A) Are headed for the Coe Ranch. 

B) Run into 35 Rustlers. 
C) Gunfight. 

D) McNab is killed. 

E) Sanders is wounded. 

F) Coe and the wounded Sanders go on! 

7. That night ••• Rustlers enter Lincoln!! 

A) Sheriff Copeland sends to Fort Stanton for 

help. 



( 

(May 1878) 
1. May 1, 1878 ~ Dawn ~ Gunbattle starts between 

the Rustlers and the Regulators: 
A) Cavalry from Fort Stanton arrives. 
B) Stop the fighting. 

C) Rustlers accompany them back to Fort 
Stanton. 

2. May 14, 1878 - The Kid & 10 other Regulators 
raid one of Dolan's cattle camps: 
A) To: 

I. Arrest some of Tunstall's killers. 
II. Get back some horses stolen from 

Tunstall. 
B) Ride in ••• Start shooting. 
C) Kill 1 of the herders and wound 2 others. 
D) Take the horses and flee. 

3. Dolan's group informs the District Attorney, 
Catron, that some of the horses taken 

H - " were... IS •• 

A) Catron tells Governor Axtell! 
B) Axtell orders the military to intervene. 
C) Axtell appoints a new Sheriff for Lincoln 

County: 



( I. George Peppin: 

(1) TOTALLY ••• A Dolan Man!! 

4. Peppin appoints his Deputies: 

A) ALL ••• Dolan Men!! 

5. Peppin makes it known: 

A) He plans to get rid of McSween and all of his 

followers! 

6. Letters are written to Washington, D.C.: 

A) Concerning all the troubles in Lincoln County. 

( B) President orders Federal Judge, Frank Angel, 

to investigate. 



( 

( 

\. 

(June & July - 1878) 
1. June 1878 - Federal Judge, Frank Angel: 

A) Investigates all of the events of Lincoln 
County. 

B) Findings: 
I. John Tunstall ••• Murdered by Outlaws ••• NOT 

killed by a legal Posse! 
II. The Indian Agent is taking bribes from the 

Dolan Faction! 
III. The Indians are being fed low-grade flour. 
IV. The Agent is turning in more Indian 

numbers than he cares for: 
(1) Why? •• To get more Government money 

and pocket it!! 
V. Corruption in Lincoln County is rampant! 
VI. Corruption in the entire New Mexico 

Territory is just as bad! 

2. July 4, 1878 - 12 Regulators are hiding at the 

Chisum Ranch: 
A) Cattle Thieves want them dead! 
B) 16 of them attack the Ranch. 
C) Siege ••• AII day & night. 
D) Cannot take the fortress-type house! 

E) July 5 th 
- Rustlers retreat! 



( 3. McSween: 

( 

A) Decides to return to Lincoln ••• To live or die 
there! 

B) His ~ollowers will accompany him. 

4. Dolan flees Lincoln to get reinforcements!! 

5. Sunday night - July 14, 1878 - McSween: 
A) Enters Lincoln. 
B) Has between 45 & 50 men. 
C) Will take up positions in 5 places: 

I. The McSween House: 
(1) Alexander McSween. 
(2) The Kid. 
(3) Tom O'Folliard. 
(4) Jim French. 
(5) Tom Cullins. 
(6) Harvey Morris. 
(7) Joe Smith. 
(8) George Bowers. 
(9) Jose Chavez y Chavez. 

(10) Jose Chavez. 
(11) Florencio Chaves. 
(12) Eugenio Salazar. 
(13) Ignacio Gonzalez. 
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(14) Vicente Romero. 

(15) Francisco Zamora. 
II. The Montano Store/House: 

(1) Martin Chavez. 
(2) Fernando Herrera. 

(3) 7 others. 

III. The Isaac Ellis House: 
(1) Charlie Bowdre. 

(2) Doc Scurlock. 

(3) John Middleton. 
(4) 9 others. 

IV. The Patron House: 

(1) 5 Men. 

V. Warehouse behind the Tunstall Store: 
(1) Hendry Brown. 

(2) George Coe. 
(3) Sam Smith. 

6. Rustlers in Lincoln take up positions: 

A) 7 occupy Torreon: 
I. Round storage structure. 

B) Dolan & 5 Men ••• The Wortley Hotel. 

7. Monday - July 15, 1878 - Dolan Faction: 

A) Now number between 30 and 60. 



B) All take up positions. 
C) Firing breaks out. 

D) Goes on all day. 

E) No casualties. 

8. Tuesday - July 16, 1878 - Firing: 
A) All day. 

B) No casualties. 

9. Wednesday - July 17, 1878 - Firing: 
A) All day. 
B) 1 st casualty: 

( I. Dolan man ••• Shot and killed. 

10. Thursday - July 18, 1878 - Small amount of 
firing: 

A) No casualties. 

11. Friday - July 19, 1878: 
A) 7:00 - Morning - Firing starts. 

B) 10:30 - Morning - Dudley &. 40 Cavalry 

Troopers from Fort Stanton arrive: 

I. Have a Howitzer and a Gatling Gun. 

II. Camp 300 yards East of the McSween 

House. 
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III. Have been sent to side with the Dolan 
Faction!!! 

C) Arrival of the Cavalry scares off 2/3's of the 

McSween men ••• They leave. 

D) Noon - Sheriff, Rustlers, arid Dolan men, 
make plans: 

I. Burn the McSween House. 

II. Force those inside to come out. 

E) Cavalry KNOWS of the plan: 

I. DO NOTHING!! 
F) McSween House is surrounded. 

G) Dolan Faction tries to set it on fire ••• Fails! 

H) 12:30 - Afternoon - House is finally set on 
fire: 

I. It is adobe. 

II. It burns slowly. 

I) Those inside: 

I. Decide to wait until dark. 
II. Make a break for freedom. 

III. Plan is put together by The Kid. 

IV. Will break out in 2 groups. 

J) Cavalry ••• Sits ••• Watches!! 

K) Those in the House: 
I. Gather in the Northeast kitchen. 

L) 30 minutes after sundown ••• Dark: 
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I. Breakout!! 

II. The Kid, French, and Morris break out the 
kitchen door: 

(1) Morris ••• Shot & Killed. 

(2) The Kid & French get away. 

III. McSween, Zamora, and Romero are shot 
and killed as they come out!! 

(1) Salazar is badly wounded. 
(2) 1 Rustler is killed. 



( (August thru December 1878) 
1. August 1878 - Chisum - Moves to Texas. 

2. August 5, 1878 - 20 Regulators: 
A) Kill a Dolan man. 

3. President Rutherford Hayes acts: 
A) Due to corruption. 
B) Removes Axtell as Governor of the New 

Mexico Territory. 

4. September 1878 - John Selman and his Gang 
( are put on the Dolan payroll! 

, 
\ , 

5. September 4, 1878 - New Governor for the New 
Mexico Territory is named ••• General Lew 

Wallace: 
A) Author of "Ben-Hur." 

6. October 1, 1878 - Wallace officially takes over. 

7. October 1, 1878 - John Selman & Gang: 
A) Murder 4 McSween supporters!! 

B) Regulators retaliate: 
I. South of Ft. Sumner - Kill 2 Dolan men. 
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II. At Puerto de Luns - Kill 2 of Selman's men. 

8. November 10, 1878 - President Hayes removes 

the corrupt, U.S. District Attorney of the New 
Mexico Territory, Thomas Catron! 

9. December 1878 - Peppin resigns as Sheriff of 

Lincoln: 
A) New Sheriff - George Kimbrell - Honest & 

Neutral. 

6. October 1, 1878 -



( (1879) 
1. 10:00 - Tuesday Night - February 23, 1879: 

A) Jesse Evans, James Dolan, and Bill Chapman. 

B) Meet Mrs. McSween's lawyer, Houston 
Chapman. 

C) Dolan & Campbell shoot him to death. 

D) Set fire to his clothing. 
E) Why the murder of Chapman??? 

I. Done for Colonel Dudley at Fort Stanton. 

II. Chapman ••• lnforming Gov. Wallace ••• Of 

Dudley's corrupt activities! 

( 2. Wallace has Evans and Campbell arrested: 

A) For the murders of Tunstall & Chapman: 

I. Both escape! 
B) Dolan is arrested for the murder of Chapman. 

C) Dudley is removed from command at Fort 

Stanton. 

3. Wallace arranges a secret meeting with The 

Kid: 
A) Agree to a fake arrest. 

B) Why? 
I. So, The Kid, can testify in the Chapman 

Case without the danger of being killed: 
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(1) In return, The Kid, gets a full pardon! 

4. The Kid testifies: 

A) Prosecutor, Rynerson makes an 
announcement: 

I. Is going to override Gov. Wallace. 

II. Is going to prosecute The Kid for the Brady 
murder! 

5. June 1879 - The Kis escapes: 
A) Goes to Ft. Sumner: 

I. Has many friends there. 

II. Girlfriend is there ••• Daughter of Pete 

Maxwell. 

6. Dolan is tried for the Chapman murder: 
A) Case is thrown out! 

7. The Kid teams up with Charlie Bowdre & Tom 

O'Folliard: 
A) Hang around Ft. Sumner. 

B) Steal a few cattle. 



( (1880) 
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1. January 1880 - The Kid kills outlaw, Joe Grant! 

2. Jesse Evans is captured in Texas: 
A) Prison. 
B) Escapes. 
C) Never heard from again. 

3. November 7, 1880 - Pat Garrett: 
A) Elected new Sheriff of Lincoln: 

I. Born - 6/5/1850 - Alabama. 
II. Raised in Louisiana. 
III. 1869 - Texas - Cowboy. 
IV. 1875 to 1877 - Buffalo Hunter. 
V. 1878 - Arrives - Ft. Sumner, New Mexico. 
VI. BARELY knows The Kid. 

4. Garrett and a Posse go after The Kid. 

5. December 19, 1880 - Ft. Sumner, New Mexico-
11 :00 - Night - Cold & Snowing: 
A) Garrett and 13 Men set an ambush. 
B) The Kid and 5 others ride into it. 
C) Massive volley of rifle fire. 
D) Tom O'Folliard is hit above the heart: 



I. Knocked from his horse. 

II. Bullet has gone clear thru him. 
III. Dies a few hours later. 

E) The Kid and the other 4 get away. 

6. The Kid's group take refuge at Stinking Springs: 
A) In a Rock House. 

7. December 20, 1880 - Night - Garrett and Posse 

surround the Rock House. 

8. December 21, 1880- Dawn: 
I,. A) Bowdre steps out of the House. 

B) To feed the horses. 
C) Volley of rifle fire. 

D) Bowdre is hit ••• Staggers todoorway ••• Falis. 

E) Kid: "Charlie, they got you. Get out there and 

get one of the son-a-bitches before you die." 

F) Slams door! 
G) Bowdre staggers to his feet ••• Reaches for gun 

••• Falls dead! 

H) All day siege. 
I) 4:00 - Afternoon - The four inside surrender! 



( (1881 to the End & Summary) 
1. April 6, 1881 - Mesilla, New Mexico: 

A) Kid's trial starts. 
B) Several charges ••• Most severe is murder of 

Brady. 

C) April 13th 
- Guilty: 

I. Sentenced to be hanged on May 13th in 

Lincoln. 

2. The Kid is taken back to Lincoln by Sheriff Pat 

Garrett and Deputy, Bob Olinger. 

( 3. Lincoln has no Jail: 

( 

A) Kept on the 2 nd story, Northeast corner, of 
the Dolan Store ••• WHICH ••• ls now the Lincoln 

County Courthouse! 
B) Wrists and ankles in irons. 

4. Guarded by Deputies: 

A) Frank Bell: 
I. He and The Kid get along fine. 

B) Bob Olinger: 
I. He hates The Kid ••• Torments him 

constantly! 

II. Kid hates him! 



( 5. April 26, 1881 - The Kid is visited by Sam 

( 

Corbett: 
A) Corbett slips him a piece of paper: 

I. On it "Privy." 

6. April 28, 1881 - The Escape: 
A) Garrett is out of town. 
B) Olinger takes 2 prisoners to eat: 

I. Across the street ••• To Wortley's Hotel. 
II. 75 yards from the Courthouse. 

C) Olinger has left his Sawed-Off, Double 
Barreled, 10 Guage, Shotgun, leaning against 
the wall! 

D) Kid asks Bell to take him downstairs and out 

back to the Outhouse. 

E) In the Outhouse: 
I. Hidden. 
II. Pistol wrapped in newspaper. 
III. Hides it inside his shirt. 

F) Back inside ••• Start up stairs: 

I. Kid in front. 
II. Suddenly turns ••• Hits Bell on the head with 

his cuffs. 
III. Pulls pistol. 
IV. Tells Bell to surrender. 
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G) Bell panics ••• Turns ••• Starts running down the 
stairs: 

I. Kid shoots him in the back below the left 
shoulder blade. 

II. Knocks Bell down the stairs. 

III. Bell staggers up. 
IV. Kid fires again ••• Misses ••• Hits wall. 

V. Bell staggers outside into the courtyard. 
VI. Falls dead! 

H) Kid knows: 

I. Olinger has heard the shots! 

II. WILL come on the run! 

I) Kid ••• Up stairs ••• Grabs Olinger's Shotgun. 
J) East corner window ••• Kid can see the street. 

K) Olinger comes running. 

L) Kid ••• From window: "Hey, Bob!" 
I. Olinger looks up. 
II. Kid blasts him with one of the barells! 

III. 9 buckshot hit Olinger in the chest 

knocking him down! 
M) Kid ••• Walks out on balcony porch: 

I. "Adios Bob, take your popgun to hell with 

you!" 
II. Calmly ••• Blasts him with the 2 nd barrel 

killing him! 



( III. Drops the shotgun down on Olinger's body! 

( 

N) Kid grabs a Winchester Rifle and 2 Pistols: 
I. Calmly. 

II. Walks across street ••• Blacksmith. 
III. Shackles are removed. 

IV. Horse. 

V. Rides away. 

7. Kid goes to Ft. Sumner: 

A) For the next 3 months: 

I. Hides. 

II. "Lives it up." 

8. Sheriff Pat Garrett, with Deputies, John Poe & 
Tip McKinney: 

A) Go after the Kid. 

9. Midnight - July 13 & 14, 1881 - Pete Maxwell's 
Ranch - Fort Sumner, New Mexico: 

A) Garrett and the 2 Deputies·arrive. 

B) Garrett goes into Maxwell's bedroom: 
I. To ask him about the Kid. 

II. Is dark ••• Sits by the bed. 
III. Starts to question Maxwell. 

C) Same time: 
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I. Kid comes out of room: 

(1) Bed with Maxwell's daughter. 
II Pants with pistol tucked in waistband: 

(1) No shirt or boots. 
III. Knife in hand: 

(1) Going to kitchen to cut them some meat 
to snack on. 

IV. Heads for kitchen. 

V. Spots the 2 Deputies at the Eastern end of 
the South Porch. 

D) Ducks into the doorway ••• Of Maxwell's 

bedroom: 

I. All within 30 seconds of Garrett entering. 

II. Form of a man in the dark ••• Sitting next to 

the bed. 

III. Eyes trying to adjust to the dark. 

IV. "Pete, quien es?" 
V. Starts backing toward the corner. 
VI. Starts pulling the .41 Colt in waistband. 

VII. "Quien es?" 
VIII. Garrett fires ••• Hits him directly in the 

heart! 
IX. Falls ••• Garrett fires again ••• Misses. 

X. Kid is dead! 



( 10. Next day - Kid is buried - Fort Sumner 

Cemetery: 

A) Next to Bowdre & O'Folliard. 

11. Billy the Kid has killed 4 men for sure: 

A) Has participated in the killings of 6 others. 
B) Total ••• 8. 

12. April 9, 1884 - Last violent death of The 

Lincoln County War. 

13. 77 violent deaths in the War: 

( A) Tunstall-McSween Faction ••• Lose 32 killed! 

B) Murphy-Dolan Faction ••• Lose 45 killed. 

14. John Chisum: 

A) Eureka Springs, Arkansas. 
B) December 20, 1884 - Dies - Neck Tumor. 

15. James Dolan: 

A) Lincoln, New Mexico. 
B) February 26, 1898 - Dies a 'natural death. 

C) Buried below Lincoln. 

16. Sue McSween: 



( A) White Oaks, New Mexico. 

( 

B) 1931 - At age 86. 
C) Dies. 

17. Pat Garrett: 

A) December 1, 1901 - Collector of Customs: 
I. EI Paso, Texas. 

B) February 29, 1908 - Near Las Cruces, New 

Mexico: 

I. On the way home to his Ranch. 

II. Is 57 years old. 

III. Shot and killed by Wayne Brazil. 
C) Brazil is tried: 

I. Claims self-defense. 
II. Not Guilty! 
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December 1878 
The Custer County Feud 

1. 1877 - The Olive Family: 

A) Establish a very large Ranch: 

I. Along the Middle & and South Loup Rivers. 
II. Custer County, Nebraska. 

2. Eastern border of their Ranch: 
A) 2 Homesteaders: 

I. Luther Mitchell. 
II. Ami Ketchum. 

B) They start stealing Olive cattle! 
C) They claim the Olives are trying to push them 

off their land! 

3. December 1878 - Bob Olive is sworn in as a 

Deputy Sheriff: 
A) He finds Olive cattle in the Railroad 

Stockyards. 
B) Traces them to the Mitchell-Ketchum group. 

4. Bob Olive leads a group of men to the Ketchum 

home: 



( A) To make an arrest. 

B) Both, Ketchum & Mitchell are in the house! 
C) Gunbattle. 

D) Bob Olive is killed. 

E) Ketchum and Mitchell get away. 

5. Later ••• Mitchell & Ketchum are caught by an 
Olive law officer: 
A) Turns them over to Print Olive. 

6. December 11, 1878 - Morning: 

A) Devil's Gap. 
( B) Print Olive presides over the lynching of the 2 

men!!! 
I. Bodies are burnt. 

7. Later ••• 1879 ••• Print Olive is arrested: 

A) Tried - Found Guilty. 
B) 1880 - Freed on a technicality. 

8. August 16, 1886 - Colorado - Saloon: 

A) Print Olive ••• Shot & killed by Joe Sparrow. 

9. Short time later ••• Jay Olive ••• Shot & killed. 



10. Only ••• Marion Olive ••• Dies a natural death. 



( 1879 
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1. Thomas Edison: 
A) Incandescent Lamp ••• The Light Bulb. 

2. F.W. Woolworth: 
A) Utica, New York. 
B) 1st - Five & Dime Store in America. 

3. Baseball ••• National League is formed: 
A) 8 Ball Clubs. 
B) Restrains the power of players. 
C) Restricts teams to 1 per city. 
D) Prohibits Sunday games. 
E) Bans the sale of alcohol at ballparks. 
F) Hires Umpires. 
G) Sets schedules. 
H) Sets admission prices. 

4. "Model" school for Indians is set up at Carlisle, 

Pennsylvania: 
A) By Army officer, Richard Pratt. 
B) Indian Children are forbidden to: 

I. Speak native tongue. 
II. To sing tribal songs. 
III. Practice tribal religions. 



C) Plan is to: 
I. Isolate the Children. 

II. Destroy the American Indian culture. 

III. Make the American Indian a 2 nd Class 
Citizen! 

D) Breakfast: 

I. SAME every morning ••• Wormy Oatmeal. 
E) End of Education: 

I. At 6 th Grade! 

II. From there on ••• Vocational ••• Barbers, 

Blacksmiths, Seamstresses, Etc. 

F) Punishment is brutal ••• Older Children are 

allowed to inflict on Younger: 

I. Wash out mouth with lye soap! 

II. Crawl "The Belt Line!" 
III. Whippings with brass-studded strap or 

hose! 

G) Hatreds between "Full-Bloods" and "Mixed­

Bloods": 

I. Many fist-fights. 
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Sentence of Death - New Mexico 

1. ".Jose Manuel Miguel .Javier Gonzales, in a few 
short weeks it will be Spring. The snows of 
winter will flow away, the ice will vanish, and 
the air will become soft and balmy. In short, 
.Jose Manuel Miguel .Javier Gonzales, the 
annual miracle of the year's awakening will 
come to pass, but you won't be here to see it! 
The creeks will run their course to the sea, 
the desert flowers will bloom, the valleys of 
this land will bloom as the rose, but you won't 
be here to see it! 
The birds will sing their mating songs, 
butterflies will dance in the sunshine, the 
bees will hum happily, the breezes will blow 
over the wild grasses, and all nature will be 
happy. All except you .Jose Manuel Miguel 
.Javier Gonzales. You won't be here to enjoy 
it, because I command the Sheriff of this 
county to lead you out to some remote spot 
and hang you by the neck from sturdy oak, and 
let you hang until you are dead! 
And then, .Jose Manuel Miguel .Javier 
Gonzales, I further command that such 
officers retire quickly from your dangling 
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corpse, so that the vultures may descend from 
the heavens and eat of your filthy body, until 
nothing shall remain but the bare, bleached 
bones of a cold-blooded, blood-thirsty, throat­
cutting, child-beating, sheep-herding, 
murdering, son-of-a-bitchl!!" 



( 1879 - February 

( 

1. February 15, 1879 - Women gain the right to 

practice law before the U.S. Supreme Court. 
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September 1879 
The Ute Indian War 

(The Ute Indians) 
1. Division of the Shoshoni Indian Family. 

2. Location: 
A) Rocky Mountains of Central & Western 

Colorado. 
B) Eastern Utah. 
C) Northern New Mexico. 

3. Physically: 
A) Small. 
B) Dark Complected. 
C) Stocky in build. 

4. Traits: 
A) Excellent Horsemen. 

B) Cunning. 
C) Fierce. 
D) Cruel. 
E) Natural Warriors, 

1\ F) Daring Raiders. 
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G) Wanderers. 

H) Considered to be "Troublemakers." 
I) Early ••• Trade captured enemy Indians to the 

Spanish for slave labor! 
J) Travel to the Great Plains to hunt Buffalo. 

K) Never strongly unified. 

L) Never have a strong political structure. 

M) Hereditary Enemies: 
I. Sioux. 

II. Cheyenne. 



( (Background) 
1. 1863 - Sign treaty: 

A) Are allowed to keep lands West of the 
Continental Divide. 

B) East of the Divide: 

I. Sold to the Whites. 
II. For: 

(1) $10 thousand worth of goods. 

(2) $10 thousand worth of provisions 

annually for the next ten years. 

2. 1868 - Whites want more of the Ute land: 
( A) Apply political pressure! 

B) Indian Bureau declares the Utes to be a 

"nuisance": 
I. Says they should be placed on a 

reservation. 

3. 10 Ute Chiefs are taken to Washington, D.C.: 

A) Two of them are: 
I. Ouray: 

(1) Very smart. 
(2) Name means: "The Arrow." 

II. Nigaagat ("Jack"). 
B) Wined and dined. 
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C) Ouray is picked by the Whites: 

I. To speak for the entire Ute Nation! 
D) Ouray refuses a reservation! 
E) Is given a large area: 

I. 16 million acres on the Western slope of the 
Rocky Mountains. 

II. With 2 Agencies: 

(1)Los Pinos: 

a. For the Southern Bands. 
(2) White River: 

a. For the Northern Bands. 

III. No miners are to be allowed into the area. 

IV. No whites are to be allowed to pass thru 
or settle on Ute lands. 

4. Whites will continue to demand more Ute lands! 

5. Miners continue to trespass on Ute lands. 

6. September 1873 - Los Pinos Agency - Meeting: 

A) Will last for seven days. 

B) Peace Commission, Ouray, and 
Representatives of 7 different Ute groups. 

C) Treaty. 
D) Utes give up another 4 million acres: 



I. In return ••• Given ••• $25 thousand per year for 
10 years. 

7. Utes are primarily now concentrated along: 

A) The White River. 

B) The Cimarron River. 

C) The Uintah River. 

D) The Uncomphagre River. 

8. 1878 - Nathan Meeker becomes Indian Agent for 
the White River Utes: 

A) 61 years old. 

( B) Born - 1817 - Ohio. 

C) Honest. 
D) No sense of humor. 

E) Impetuous. 
F) Egotistical. 

G) Overbearing. 
H) Fanatical. 

I) "Do-Gooder." 
J) Reformer. 

K) Poet. 
L) Newspaper War Correspondent. 

M) Founds ••• Greely, Colorado.· 
N) Feels he has a religious duty to: 



( I. Civilize, educate, and convert the "Barbaric 
Savages." 

9. May 1878 - Meeker takes over at White River: 

A) Moves the Agency to Powell Valley on the 

White River. 
B) He orders the valley plowed up for crops! 

I. This is the grazing land for the Ute horses. 

C) He forbids the Utes to hunt! 

D) He orders the Utes to farm and attend school! 

10. The Utes build a race track: . 

( A) Meeker builds a schoolhouse across the 

track destroying it!! 

B) Meeker closes the horse pasture. 

11. Meeker's wife, Arvilla, and their 22 year old 

daughter, Josie, arrive. 

12. Meeker ••• Statement: "I shall cut every Indian 
down to the bare starvation ·point if he will not 

work!" 

13. Utes grow to hate Meeker: 

A) He is not supportive. 
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B) Wants to make them Reservation Farmer 

Indians. 

14. 1879 - Whites in Colorado: 

A) Want more Ute lands. 



(September 1879 to the End) 
1. Monday - September 1, 1879 - Meeker: 

A) Threatens to move Soldiers in to force the 
Indian children to go to school! 

2. Soldiers insist that the children attend school. 

3. Meeker orders the horse pasture lands p;owed 
up for crops: 
A) Shadrach Price starts plowing: 

I. 2 young Utes fire warning shots over his 

Head: 
( (1) One of them is a half-breed, 

B) He stops plowing! 

4. Monday - September 8, 1879: 
A) "Johnson" comes to see Meeker about the 

plowing incident. 
B) Meeker tells him they have too many ponies: 

I. They should KILL a few!!!! 

C) "Johnson" gets angry: 
I. Throws Meeker out onto the porch. 

D) Meeker throws "Johnson" into the hitching 

post. 
E) Two men run up and grab "Johnson": 
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I. He breaks loose. 

II. Gets away. 

F) Meeker - Telegram to Fort Steele - North of 
the Wyoming border - Reports the episode: 

I. Asks the Military for assistance. 

II. Ordered to arrest "Johnson." 

5. Major Thomas Thornburgh leads the military 
expedition to White River: 
A) 153 Soldiers - 25 Civilians ••• 178 men total: 

I. 370 horses & mules. 

II. 33 wagons. 

B) Thornburgh: 
I. 36 years old. 

II. Married. 

III. Loves Whiskey! 
IV. Loves Women! 
V. Loves Irish Setter Dogs! 

6. The Utes know Thornburgh's force is on the 

way: 
A) Ute delegation meets Thornburgh. 

B) Want to know what is going on? 
C) Tell Thornburgh they want no trouble! 



7. At the reservation line: 

A) Thornburgh is stopped: 

I. Told he has no right to cross! 

II. Says he will go where he pleases! 
III. Moves onto the reservation with 142 men! 

8. Utes hold a council: 

A) Decide the Soldiers must be stopped! 

9. Monday - September 29, 1879 - The White River 

Massacre: 

A) White River Agency: 

( I. Utes attack! 
II. Kill 8 men ••• One of them is Meeker: 

(1) Shot thru the head. 

(2) Skull crushed. 

(3) Chain around his neck. 

(4) Nude body is dragged around. 
(5) Barrel stave is shoved down his throat. 

III. 3 women & 2 children are taken captive. 

IV. 6 miles from the Agency: 

(1) Kill 2 civilians. 

10. Same day - Monday - September 29, 1879 -

( The Battle of Milk River: 



( A) Red Canyon. 

( 

B) Thornburgh's force is strung out for 2 miles. 
C) 10:00 - Morning - 300 Utes spring ambush. 

D) Thornburgh is shot just above the ear and 
killed! 

E) Wagon corral is formed: 
I. Soldiers inside. 

F) Surrounded. 

G) All the horses are killed. 

H) Grass is set on fire. 
I) Siege. 

J) Night - Guide, Joe Rankin, volunteers to go 
for help: 

I. 10:30 - Heads out! 

II. Will cover the 160 miles to Rawlins, 
Wyoming in 27 1f2 hours! 

III. Telegrams for help. 

K) Tuesday - September 30th 
- Siege continues. 

L) Wednesday - October 1, 1879 - The command 

has suffered 40% casualties: 

I. 13 killed & 43 wounded. 

M) Thursday - October 2, 1879 - 52 men of the 
9 th Cavalry arrives: 

I. Siege continues. 

N) Sunday - October 5, 1879 - 5:30 - Morning: 
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I. General Wesley Merritt's relief column 
arrives. 

II. Indians retreat ••• Have lost 6 killed. 

III. Soldiers lose 13 killed & 43 wounded. 

11. Ouray requests peace meetings be held at the 

Agency: 

A) Merritt agrees. 

12. Tuesday - October 21, 1879 - The 3 captive 

women and 2 children are returned: 
A) Learned that some of the Utes have raped 

the women: 
I. 5 of the Utes will be sent to Leavenworth 

Federal Penitentiary for the rapes: 

(1) All - Released - Within a year. 

13. August 24, 1880 - Ouray dies. 

14. Utes are branded as criminals: 

A) No trials. 
8) Treaty rights are cancelled. 
C) Title to 12 million acres of land in Colorado is 

taken away! 



( 15. August 1881 - Northern Utes are sent to the 

( 
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barren Uintah Reservation in Utah: 
A) Southern Utes are sent to the Southern 

valleys of Colorado. 



( 1880 
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1. Population -50,155,783. 

2. Salvation Army ~ Starts work. in America.· 

3. Photography - Becomes an "art" form. 

4. The Arts: 
A) Start of Artistic Realism. 
B) Emergence of "Realists" - Hope to bring about Social 

Reform ~ Thru, literature and painting: 
I. Henry ~ames - Writer. 
II. Kate Chopin - Writer. 
III. Mark Twain - Writer. 
IV. Louisa May Alcott - Writer. 
V. Walt Whitman -Poet. 
VI. Winslow Homer - Painter. 
VII. Thomas Eakins - Painter. 
VIII.~ohn Ferguson Weir - Painter. 
IX. Mary Cassatt-Painter. 

5. Education - Universities: 
A) Professors - Highly trained and specialized. 
8) Teach - Modern Literature, Greek, Latin, Science, 

Sociology, Anthropology, and Political Science. 

6. Politics: 
( A) 2 styles: Partisan and Voluntary: 
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I. Partisan: Democrats & Republicans~ 
II. Voluntary: Organizations, Reform Clubs, Labor 

Unions, Farmer's Groups, and Women's Groups. 
B) Party Politics.I!I.Primarily run by "Machines." 
C) Henry George - Middle Class Radical: 

I. Believes ••• The political economy of industrial 
capitalism undermines American values of 
individual liberty and equality. 

II. Believes ••• Adiscontented working class will 
overthrow private ownerShip. 

III. Writes - "progress and Poverty": 
(1) Plot ••• Technology and economic growth have 

created progress AND poverty by separation of 
the· classes. 

7. The Media: 
A) Newspapers: 

I. Key role in Politics. 
II. Editors are party advocates. 
III. Advertise the Party. 

8. Women: 
A) Stereotyped: 

I. Too frail to leave home. 
II. Too frail to engage in .business. 
III. Destined to be mothers. 

B) In Politics - Primarily involved in Reform Movements: 

I. Slavery. 
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II. Prostitution. 
III. Poverty. 
IV. Suffrage. 
V. Temperance: 

(1) Women's Christian Temperance Union. 
(2) Presid.nt ••• Franees Willard. 
(3) Support: (Besides Anti-Alcohol) 

a. Women's Suffrage Movement. 
b. 8 hour workday Movement. 
c. Anti-Child Labor Movement. 
d. Anti-Poverty Movement. 

, , 

e. Public Health Movement. 
f. Literacy Movement. 
g. Prison reform Movement. 
h. Stopping Immorality Movement. 
i. Peace Movement., 
j. Anti-Racism Movement. 
k. Anti-Prejudiced vs. Immigrants Movement. 

9. Males: 
A) Bonding develops. 
B) Men's Clubs. 
C) Smoking and Talking. 
D) Sporting Events. 
E) Physical Exertion: (Hunting - Sports - Wage Labor) 

I. Important to control a man's sexual urges. 
II. Masturbation ••• NO! 

F) Masculinity was: 
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Considered the ability to leave home and compete 
in the capitalist labor market. 

10. The Economy: 
A) Prices fall. 
B) Wages fall. 

C) 40% of workers are below the poverty line. 
D) Employees: 

I. Scared of labor radicalism. 
II. Scared of laborers using violence. 
III. Will demand police power to put down strikes. 

11. The Great Migration - European Immigration: 
A) From: 

I. Germany - England - Scandanavia -- China - Italy -
Russian ~ews - Syrians - Armenians - Greeks -
Portugese - Canadians. 

B) Why? 
I. Very poor! 
II. World persecution, political upheaval, and 

economics. 

12. American Indians: 
A) Reservation Indian Police are formed: 

I. Report directly to agents. 
II. Hated by tribal members. 

B) Indian· Reformers: 
( I. Want to absorb them into the economy of capitalism. 



( II. Feel they are "inferior." 

III. Is "ok" to destruct their culture, family and 
. political. 

IV. Send Indian Children to Government Schools. 
C) By 1887 - Males are forced to choose between their 

wives: 

I. Custom of more than 1 wife is out of necessity: 
(1) Losses.ofyoung men.tohunting and fighting. 

II. Noble for a man to care for more than 1 wife. 
III. Most plural wives are sisters: 

(1) No jealousy. 
(2) Bloodlines stay in order. 

13. Women & Sexuality: 
( A) Gynecology isa new Science. 

B) Passionate Female Sexuality is: 
I. Considered disturbing. 
II~Diagnosed by male docto·rsas "Neurasthenia." 

C) Doctors - To "cure" female disorders - Mutilate 
women's bodies: 
I. Excise clitoris to prevent masturbation. 
II. Remove ovaries to "cure" Neurasthenia. 

D) Doctors replace ·Ministers as authorities on sex, 
. reproduction, and morality: 
I. Define homosexuality as a medical abnormality and 

perversion. 
II. Advocate la~s against same gender sex. 

E) Belief - Motherhood is the natural destiny of females: 
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I. Doctors limit access to contraception. 
II. Doctors limit access to abortion. 

F) Belief by male Doctors: 
I. Because of energy spent in reproduction, women 

. are ·not capable of higher education. 



( 1880 
Phoebe Anne "Oakley" Mozee 

1. Born - August 13, 1860 - Ohio: 
A) Learns to shoot with a muzzle-loader. 
B) In her teens ••• Out-shoots marksman, Frank Butler. 

2. 1882 - Marries - Frank Butler. 

3. 1883 - The 2 are partners - Shooting act. 

4. Origin of "Oakley" is unknown. 

5. With Buffalo Bill Cody's Wild West Show: 
( A) For 17 years. 

B) Adopted by Chief Sitting Blin: 
I. Names her: "Watanya Cecilia" - Little Sure Shot. 

C) Prefers a .22 Rifle·and a .16 Guage Shotgun. 
D) Shoots dimes spun into the air. 
E) At 30 yards - Slices a playing card edgewise. 
F) Colored balls thrown into the air while on horseback. 
G) 4,772 trap out of 5,000. 
H) Performs before 7 European Kings and Queens: 

I. One is Queen Victoria. 
I) 1913 -- Last outdoor Wild West performance. 

. ' . . 

6. November 3,1926 - At age 66 - Dies: 

( 
A) Frank dies 18 days later. 

\ 
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November 1880 
1. Presidential Election - Republican, James 

Garfield - 20th President. 
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1. The New Testament appears: 
A) Combined work of American & English 

scholars. 

2. Terrance Powderly: 
A) Leader: The Knights of Labor. 
B) Calls for national boycott to support strike. 

3. J.H. Haverly - Leader - Promoting Minstrel 
Shows: 
A) Gathers variety of Players & Entertainers. 
B) Gaudy costumes. 
C) Spectacular sets. 
D) Women in scant costumes. 
E) He ••• : 

I. Advertises. 
II. Uses publicity stunts. 
III. Has theatres in: 

(1) New York City. 
(2) Brooklyn, New York. 
(3) Chicago, Illinois. 
(4) San Francisco, California. 

IV. Has 3 National Minstrel Troupes. 
V. Has 4 Touring Comedy Theatres. 
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VI. Has heavy investments in: 
(1) Mills. 
(2) Mines. 
(3) Stocks. 

F) Most famous Black Minstrel ••• Billy Kersands. 



( March - 1881 

( 

1. March 4, 1881 -Inauguration - 20th President-
49 year old, Republican, James Garfield: 
A) Born -11/19/1831 - Orange, Ohio. 
B) 1856 - Williams College: 

I. Top of class. 
C) 1858 - Marries - Lucretia Rudolph. 
D) 1860 - Lawyer. 
E) 6 feet tall. 
F) Civil War - Union Army. 
G) 1880 - U.s. Senate - Ohio. 
H) "Dark Horse" President. 
I) Last President born in a log cabin. 
J) 1st Left-Handed President. 
K) Loves Billiards. 
L) Writes ••• Either hand ••• Same time: 

I. Greek, Latin, or English. 
II. Can switch. 

M) September 19, 1881 - Dies at age 49. 



April 1881 
Dallas Stoudenmire - Lawman 

1. Dallas Stoudenmire: 
A) Born - 1843 - Abafoil, Alabama. 
B) Civil War - Confederate Army: 

I. Serves under General .Joseph E • 
.Johnston. 

II. Wounded 4 times. 
C) Colorado County, Texas: 

I. Enlists in the Texas Rangers. 
D) 6 feet, 2 inches tall - Heavy set - Brown 

eyes - Brown hair. 

( 2. EI Paso, Texas is a "boom town": 

I 
( 

A) Bill .Johnson is the City Marshal: 
I. Is a drunk! 
II. Is close friends with the Manning 

Brothers: 
a • .Jim - Frank - and Dr. G.F. 

III. Is good friends with the "Sporting 
Crowd." 

IV. Makes no arrests!! 
V. Will not resign!l 
VI. Will not allow anyone to fire him!! 

3. Stoudenmire arrives in EI Paso - On April 11, 
1881 he is hired as the City Marshal! 



4. Stoudenmire walks into the Saloon: 
A) Asks .Johnson for the keys to the jail: 

I. He refuses! 
a. Stoudenmire shakes the hell out of 

him and gets the keys! 

5. His best friend becomes "Doc" Cummings, 
who owns The Globe Restaurant: 

A) Cummings competition is the Manning 
Brothers who own 2 saloons. 

6. Bodies of 2 murdered Mexicans are found 
outside EI Paso: 
A) Rumor: Committed by .Johnny Hale and Len 

Peterson: 
I. They run a Manning owned ranch! 

B) Inquest: 
I. Overflow crowd. 
II. Texas Ranger, Gus Krempkau, is the 

interpreter. 
III. Goes on 'til noon. 
IV. Recess. 
V. Everybody goes out into the street. 
VI. Hale is furious: 

a. Stops Krempkau. 
b. Accuses him of lying! 
c. Krempkau denies the charge! 
d. Hale - Pulls his .45 - Shoots 
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Krempkau through the head killing 
him! 

VII. Stoudenmire whirls around - Charges 
Hale firing: 
a. 1st shot misses - Hits an innocent 

bystander killing him! 
b. 2nd shot hits Hale killing him! 

VIII. Friend of Hale's - George Campbell -
Pulls his gun on Stoudenmire: 
a. Stoudenmire tums and fires killing 

himl 
IX. All of this in 4 seconds!!! 

a. 4 men are dead!!! 

7. The Manning Brothers and their followers are 
determined to get rid of Stoudenmire: 
A) Know they can't do it legally! 
B) Hire ex-Marshal, .Johnson, to murder him!! 

8. Night - .Johnson gets drunk - Hires some help: 
A) Set up an ambush! 
B) He comes down the boardwalk: 

I. At a distance of 25 feet - .Johnson fires 
at him with both barrels of a shotgun: 
a. MISSESI 

II. Stoudenmire pulls 2 .45's from his 
leather-lined back pockets and charges 
him firing: 



a. Kills Johnson! 
III. Johnson's buddies open fire on 

Stoudenmire wounding him in the foot: 
a. He charges them firingl 
b. They flee! 

9. February 1882 - Stoudenmire goes to East 
Texas to get married: 
A) Leaves Deputy, Jim Gillette in charge: 

I. Gillette gets sick: 
a. "Doc" Cummings takes over! 

10. Cummings gets drunk: 
A) Brags he's going to kill the Mannings! 

( B) Walks into "The Coliseum" - A Manning 
saloon: 
I. 10 seconds later - He is shot and killed 

by Jim Manning! 

11. Stoudenmire swears revenge: 
A) TENSION between he and the Manning 

crowd! 
I. Town Council steps in and makes both 

sides sign a truce on April 16, 1882111 
a. Stoudenmire resigns. 
b. Jim Gillette becomes City Marshal. 

12. Stoudenmire becomes a U.S. Deputy Marshal: 



A) West Texas. 
B) Deming, New Mexico. 
e) Returns to ••••• EI Paso!!!!! 

13. September 18, 1882 - 2:00 - Morning - Walks 
into a Manning saloon for a drink: 

A) Gets drunk! 
B) Swears he will get the Mannings! 
e) Goes home to sleep off the drunk. 
D) Mannings arm themselves! 

14. Morning - September 18, 1882: 
A) Stoudenmire realizes what he has done: 

I. Goes to apologize to the Mannings. 
II. Walks into their saloon. 
III. Tells ~Im Manning to get Frank 

Manning so he can apologize! 
B) ~im manning leaves to get him: 

I. G.F. Manning walks in and calls 
Stoudenmire a liar! 

II. Both men pull pistols and fire! 
III. Stoudenmire hits Manning In the right 

arm above the elbow. 
IV. Manning hits Stoudenmire In the left 

shoulder. 
e) The 2 men start wrestling with each other: 

I. Out the door onto the boardwalk! 
II. ~im Manning emerges from the saloon: 
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a. Pulls a pistol - Shoots Stoudenmire 
through the left temple killing him! 

15. Jim Manning is tried for murder and 
acquitted! 



May -1881 
1. May 21, 1881 - Clara Barton: 

A) Founds ••• The Red Cross. 
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July 2, 1881 - The Assassination of 
President James Garfield 

1. Dissension in the Republican Party: 
A) The "Half-Breeds" are led by James G. 

Blaine: 
I. Have supported Garfield for the 

nomination. 
II. Win! 

B) The "Stalwarts" are led by New York 
Senator, Roscoe Conkling: 
I. Have supported Grant for a 3rd term. 
II. Lose! 
III. Are bitter 

C) ONLY way Garfield gets "Stalwart" support 
is by naming "Stalwart", Chester Alan 
Arthur, as his Vice Presidential mate: 
I. Garfield names Blaine as his Secretary 

of State. 
D) Garfield reserves the right to name his 

office holders: 
I. "Stalwarts" believe it should be done 

based on the number of Senators and 
Representatives of states: 
a. WITH "Stalwart" approval! 

2. Most lucrative job open for appointment is 
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Collector of Customs for New York: 
A) Garfield nominates .Judge William 

Robertson: 
I. Confirmed! 

B) In protest and disgust - New York 
Senators, Roscoe Conkling and Thomas C. 
Platt resign: 
I. NOW, very uneasy feelings in the 

Republican Party. 

3. Charles .Julius Guiteau: 
A) 37 years old. 
B) Bom 1844 -Illinois. 
C) Short - Slight build. 
D) Lawyer - Considered to be "a little 

unstable." 
E) Is a confirmed Republican "Stalwart." 
F) Writes Garfield many times: 

I. Wants to be made U.S. Consul to France. 
II. Garfield doesn't answer: 

a. Guiteau swears revenge! 

4 • .July 2, 1881: 
A) 48 year old, .James Garfield has been 

President for 4 months. 
B) 9:20 - Moming - He and Secretary of State, 

.James G. Blaine, arrive at the Baltimore & 
Potomoc Railroad Station: 
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I. Washington, D.C. 
II. Garfield is to catch the train to Williams 

College to make a speech: 
a. Then travel to Elberon, New .Jersey 

to meet his wife. 
C) Guiteau walks up behind Garfield: 

I. Pulls out a .44 caliber, British, Bulldog 
Revolver. 

II. Fires twice: 
a. 1st bullet: 

(1) Passes through the body doing no 
serious damage. 

b. 2nd bullet: 
(1) Enters the back. 
(2) Fractures a rib. 
(3) Glances and fractures a 

vertebrae. 
(4) Nicks the large artery causing an 

aneurysm. 
(5) Lodges deep in the body behind 

the pancreas. 
D) Guiteau is quickly arrested and taken to 

jail! 
E) Garfield is taken to the White House and 

cared for: 
I. Diagnosis is he will recover. 
II. Improves for a short period of time! 
III. Then, gets worse. 



( 5. Taken to Elberon, New ~ersey in the hopes he 
will get better: 
A) Does so for a short period of time! 
B) Then, gets drastically worse! 
C) Blood poison has set in!!! 

6. Night - September 19, 1881 - The aneurysm 
bursts: 
A) Garfield is dead after being President for 6 

Y2 months. 

7. September 20, 1881 - 50 year old, Chester 
Alan Arthur, in his home in New York, is swom 
in as the 21 5t President: 

( A) Bom - October 5, 1830 - Fairfield, Vermont. 

\ 
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B) 1848 - Union College - Phi Beta Kappa. 
C) 1854 - Lawyer. 
D) 1859 - Marries - Ellen Hemdon. 
E) Civil war - Union Army. 
F) 6 feet, 2 inches tall - Full side whiskers 

and mustache! 
G) 1st President bom in Vermont. 
H) LOVES to eat. 
I) Owns 80 pairs of pants. 
~) Puts the 1st tiled bathroom in the White 

House. 
K) Dies - November 18, 1886 - Age 56. 
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8. November 14, 1881 - Trial of Charles Guiteau 
starts: 
A) Defends himself. 
B) Talks to himself. 
C) Laughs out loud. 
D) Doesn't seem to take the trial seriously. 
E) Claims he killed Garfield to put a good 

"Stalwart" in the White House. 
F) .January 25, 1882 - .Jury is out for 65 

minutes: 
I. Guilty - Death! 

9 • .July 30, 1882 - Washington, D.C. - Crowd of 
250: 
A) 12:40 - Afternoon - Last words: "Glory, 

Glory": 
I. Hanged! 
II. Autopsy - Brain - Syphilis! 



1882 
1. 300,000 Chinese on the Pacific Coast: 

A) Make a living by: 
I. Work in mines. 
II. Look for Gold. 
III. Work on the Railroads. 
IV. Work on Farms. 
V. Work in Restaurants. 
VI. Open Restaurants. 
VII. Open Laundries. 
VIII. Open small businesses. 

B) Are poorly paid. 
C) Face hostility from: 

I. Americans. 
II. Europeans. 

2. Chinese Exclusion Act is passed: 
A) Bans further immigration from China. 

3. Baseball: 
A) The American Association is formed. 
B) Within a year the 2 Leagues will merge: 

I. Put caps on players. 
II. Pay salaries. 
III. Establish the "Reserve Clause": 



( (1) Prevents players from moving from 

team to team. 
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1882 
Max "Kid Twist" Zwerbach - Killer 

1. 1882 - New York - Killer for Monk Eastman: 
A) Will murder at least 10 men! 
B) Richie Fitzpatrick - Rival gang leader: 

I. Murdered by Zwerbach! 
C) In 1 week - He and Vach "Cyclone Louie" 

Lewis - Kill 5 of Lewis' men! 

2. 1908 - Coney Island, New York: 
A) Zwerbach and Lewis are ambushed by 20 

members of the 5 Points Gang: 
I. 50 bullets fired into the 2 men killing 

them! 
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1. Roy Bean: 

1882 
".Judge" Roy Bean 

A) Bom - 1825 - Mason County, Kentucky. 
B) Mexican/American War - Drives an 

ammunition wagon. 
C) Chihuahua, Mexico - Runs a saloon. 
D) Califomia Gold Rush. 
E) Mesilla, New Mexico - Runs a saloon. 
F) San Antonio, Texas - Smuggles cotton. 
G) San Antonio, Texas - Marries Virginia 

Chavez: 
1.2 boys: Roy Jr. and Sam. 
II. 2 girls: Laura and Zulema. 

H) Is 5 feet, 10 inches tall - Gray eyes -
Beard. 

2. 1882 - Establishes the tent camp of 
"Vinegrone" for the railroad workers building 
west from San Antonio: 
A) Has a saloon. 
B). Appoints himself Justice of the Peace. 

3. Moves to Eagles Nest - 20 miles west of the 
Pecos River: 
A) Appoints himself Justice of the Peace. 

( 4. Establishes the town of Langtry, Texas: 
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A) Named after English actress, Lily Langtry! 
B) Bean idolizes her! 
C) Town consists of: 

I. Combination: Saloon, Town Hall, and 
Opera House named "The ~ersey Lily." 

5. Becomes the ~ustice of the Peace: 
A) Virtually rules the 400 mile area between 

San Antonio and the Pecos River: 
I. Becomes known as: "The Law West of 

the Pecos." 

6. Concealed weapon episode! 

7. 1902 - At age 77 he retires as a "~udge." 

8. March 16, 1903 - Langtry, Texas - At age 78 -
Dies of pneumonia: 
A) Buried in Woodlawn Cemetery in Del Rio, 

Texas. 

9. 10 months after his death: 
A) Lily Langtry visits the town named after 

her. 



1882 
Vicente Silva & The White Caps 

1. 1882 - Vicente Silva - Las Vegas, New Mexico: 
A) Opens a Saloon and Gambling House. 
B) Does very well. 
C) Well-respected member of the community. 
D) He and his wife, Telsefora, have no 

children: 
I. She wants a child. 

2. One of Silva's closest friends is Territorial 
Legislator, Pablo Herrera. 

( 3. Silva is actually leader of a Gang called "The 
White Caps": 
A) 2nd in Command is ••••• Herrera!!1 
B) Wear white masks to cover their facesl 
C) The Gang is also called "The Society of 

Bandits" or "The 40 Thieves." 
D) Silva has 3 policemen on his payroll! 

4. 1892 - Gang member, Patricio Mass, turns 
traitor: 
A) Gang finds out - Lynch him from the 

Gallinas Bridge: 
I. Silva is suspected BUT his wife 

fumishes an alibi for him: 
a. He bribes her into fumishing the alibi 
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by agreeing to adopt a foster 
daughter! 

5. Silva has a mistress - Wife finds out - She 
threatens him: 
A) To keep her quiet he has the foster 

daughter kidnapped! 
B) Wife will not stand for it! 
C) Silva realizes that his wife and her brother, 

Gabriel, know too much! 
D) Sends gang member, ~ulian Trujillo, to tell 

her the child has been found: 
I. Her brother, Gabriel, goes with Trujillo. 
II. Led into an alley. 
III. Grabbed - Skull crushed - Stabbed: 

a. Body is thrown into an old cesspool! 
E) Silva sends his wife a note: "Brother and 

daughter are all right, please come." 
F) She arrives: 

I. Silva stabs her to death: 
a. Throw her body into a grave! 

G) The Gang fears Silva - They shoot him in 
the head killing him: 
I. Throw his body into the grave next to his 

wife. 

6. April 10, 1894 - Gang member is arrested: 
A) Tells all and gives names! 
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B) Herrera is shot to death at the Las Vegas 
Railroad Depot by Sheriff Felipe Lopez! 

C) Trujillo and 10 members are captured: 
I. Tried - Sentence is life! 

D) 2 members will be captured and legally 
hanged! 

E) 1 member will be captured and lynched! 
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1882 - July 
1. July 26, 1882 - U.S. accepts the Geneva 

Convention Rules of War: 

A) Care of wounded in War. 
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1882 - September 
1. New York City ••• 1st city to be changed by 

Electricity: 

A) Generated by coal-burning power plants. 
B) Replaces dirty & dangerous Gas Lights and 

Candles. 



( 1883 

c 

1. The Pendleton Act: 
A) Prohibits REQUIRING patronage office 

holders to contribute to Party Machines that 
gave them their jobs. 

B) President ••• To establish a Civil Service 
Commission to give tests for Federal jobs! 
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1883 - March 
1. March 3, 1883 - Secretary of the Navy is 

authorized to construct 4 steel boats: 
A) Marks the beginning of America's Steel Navy. 



1883 - May 
1. May 24, 1883 - New York: 

A) Between New York City and Brooklyn. 
B) Brooklyn Bridge is opened. 
C) Designed by John Roebling. 



( 

1883 
The dohn Heith Gang 

1. John Heith: 
A) Gang leader. 
B) Owns a Saloon and Dance Hall in Bisbee, 

Arizona. 
C) Gang members: 

I. Howard - Delaney - Dowd - Sample - and 
Kelly. 

2. December 2, 1883 - At the Heith Saloon: 
A) The 6 men plot to rob the Goldwater­

Casteneda Store in Bisbee! 

3. Heith personally takes no part in the robbery: 
A) Delaney and Dowd are the outside guards: 

I. They kill bystander, John Toppenier. 
B) D.T. Smith and J.A. Nolley come running up: 

I. Are shot and killed! 
C) Mrs. Annie Roberts comes to the window of 

her home to see what is going on: 
I. Is shot and killed! 

D) Robbers get away with several thousand 
dollars: 
I. Split the money! 

4. All 6 men are caught: 
A) Placed in the Tombstone, Arizona Jail. 



( B) Tried - Guilty! 
C) All but Heith are sentenced to hang: 

I. He is given life! 
II. Citizens of Bisbee are outraged at his life 

sentence! 

5. February 22, 1884 - Mob of Bisbee citizens 
break into the Tombstone Jail: 
A) Drag Heith out. 
B) Taken to a telegraph pole and lynched! 

6. March 8, 1884 - Tombstone Jail Yard - The 
other 5 men are legally hanged! 



( 1884 
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1. Chicago, Illinois: 
A) 1 st Skyscraper in America. 

B) 10 stories tall. 
C) Home Insurance Building. 

2. 1 st Long-Distance Telephone Service opened: 
A) Between Boston, Massachusetts & New York 

City. 
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1. Elfego Baca: 

1884 
Elfego Baca 

A) Born ••• 1865 ••• Socorro, New Mexico. 
B) Mexican by birth. 

2. Move to Topeka, Kansas: 
A) Move back to New Mexico. 

3. 1884 ••• At age 19 ••• Becomes Deputy Sheriff of 
Frisco, New Mexico: 
A) Excellent law officer. 
B) Fearless. 
C) Good with a gun. 

4. One of ~ohn Slaughter's cowboys: 
A) Named "McCarty." 
B) For a prank: 

I. 'Castrates a Mexican. 
II. One of the man's friends tries to stop 

them: 
(1) McCarty uses him for target practice. 
(2) Kills him. 

5. Baca arrests McCarty: 
A) Places him in jail. 
B) Slaughter's cowboy foreman, "Perham": 

I. Drunk - On his horse. 



( 

II. Demands the release of McCarty. 
III. Baca: "No!" 
IV. Perham draws his pistol. 
V. Baca draws and fires 3 times. 
VI. Perham's horse rears: 

(1) Falls over backward crushing Perham 
to death! 

6. Baca knows Slaughter's cowboys will try to 
free McCarty: 
A) Takes him to an old adobe hut 

I. Barricades the two of them inside. 

7. 9:00 - Morning - 80 cowboys open a siege on 
the hut: 
A) Goes on for 36 hours. 
B) Over 4,000 shots fired into the hut. 
C) 367 shots hit the old, heavy, door. 
D) Try to dynamite it down: 

I. Part of the hut is knocked down. 
E) Baca continues to fire. 
F) Two lawmen arrive: 

I. Cowboys leave. 
G) Baca has killed 4 and wounded 8. 
H) Baca delivers McCarty to the Socorro, New 

Mexico jail. 

8. Baca is tried for the killing of the 4 cowboys: 
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A) Hung jury. 

9. Baca is tried again for the 4 killings: 
A) Not guilty! 

10. Later: 
A) Deputy Sheriff. 
B) U.S. Marshall. 
C) Lawyer. 

11. 1919: 
A) At age 54 - Elected Sheriff of Socorro 

County New Mexico. 

12. 1945: 
A) Albuquerque, New Mexico: 

I. At age 80 - Dies. 
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1884 
Hendry Brown & Ben Wheeler 

1. Hendry Brown: 
A) Friend of Billy the Kid in the Lincoln County 

War. 
B) Horse thief in Arizona and New Mexico. 
C) 1878 - Constable of Tascosa, Texas. 
D) 1881 - Deputy Marshal of Caldwell, Kansas. 
E) 1882 - City Marshal of Caldwell, Kansas: 

I. His Deputy is Ben Wheeler. 

2. May 1, 1884: 
A) Medicine Lodge, Kansas. 
B) Bank is robbed by: 

I. Hendry Brown. 
II. Ben Wheeler. 
III • .John Wesley. 
IV. William Smith. 

C) Kill the bank president. 
D) Kill a cashier. 
E) Posse traps them in .Jackass Gulch: 

I. Gunfight. 
II. The 4 men surrender. 
III. Taken back to Medicine Lodge. 
IV. Placed in jail. 

3. Lynch mob forms: 
A) Overpower the Sheriff. 



B) Drag the 4 men from the jail. 
e) Brown gets loose and runs: 

I. Blasted with a shotgun and killed. 
D) The other 3 are lynched! 
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1884 

The Lewiston Shootout 
1. Charles Owen: 

A) 37 years old. 
B) Nickname: "Rattlesnake ~ake." 
C) Slim - 5 feet, 10 inches tall - Pale 

complexion - Gray eyes - Sharp nose -
Thin lips - Shoulder-length dark brown 
hair. 

D) Carries two Colt .45's and two knives. 
E) Is a cattle and horse thief. 
F) Is wanted in Shreveport, Louisiana on a 

murder charge. 
G) Spends his winters in Wyoming: 

I. Gambling. 
II. Drinking. 
III. Whoring. 
IV. Betting on horse races. 

2. Charles Fallon: 
A) 30 years old. 
B) Same physical build as Owen except he 

has short hair. 
C) Never carries a pistol - Carries a .30-30 

Winchester and a knife. 
D) Is a cattle and horse thief. 
E) Wanted in New Mexico for shooting up 

ranches, burning buildings & haystacks. 
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F) Spends his winters in Wyoming with Owen 
doing the samel 

3. July 4, 1884 - The 2 men arrive in Lewiston, 
Montana: 
A) Lose their money betting on the horse 

races. 
B) Both are in an ugly mood. 
C) Start drinking heavily! 
D) Are waiting for a horse race to begin. 
E) Hear an argument between two men. 
F) For NO REASON, they interfere. 
G) Owen takes his pistol and hits one of the 

men, Bob Jackson, across the mouth: 
I. Jackson walks away! 

H) Owen and Fallon follow him and beat him 
up! 

I) The 2 men threaten to take over the town! 
J) Start drinking again. 
K) FOR NO REASON, Owen takes a dislike to 

a man named John Doane: 
I. Shoots Doane! 
II. Doane fires back blowing Owen's trigger 

finger off! 
III. Owen switches hands with the pistol. 

L) Everybody is now firing! 
M) Fallon mounts his horse and starts 

shooting at anybody and everybody: 
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I. He is shot through the stomach and 
slumps over the saddle-hom! 

II. Wheels the horse around and heads out 
of town at full speed. 

III. Gets 400 yards - Realizes Owen is still 
in town. 

IV. Turns around and heads back! 
N) Owen is kneeling and firing at anything 

that moves. 
0) Fallon dismounts - Fires and kills a young 

man named Ben Smith. 
P) Owen has been hit 8 times but is still firing! 
Q) Fallon has been hit 4 times but is still 

firing. 
R) A 9th bullet hits Owen in the head killing 

him! 
S) A 5th bullet hits Fallon in the chest killing 

him! 



( 1884 - November 
1. November 4, 1884 - Presidential Election: 

A) 22nd President. 

B) Democrat, Grover Cleveland. 

( 



( 1885 

c 

1. The 11.7 Major Crimes Act" is passed: . 

A) Indians on reservations are subject to,prosecution 
for: 
I. Murder - Manslaughter - Assault with intent to kill 

- Rape - Burglary - Arson. 
B) Today ••••• FBI has jurisdiction over these. 

2. A.T. & T. is formed: 
A) American Telephone & Telegraph. 

3. Politics: 
A) Rampant with corruption. 

4. The Big Business Magnates of America: 
A) Andrew Carnegie - Steel. 
B) HenrY Clay Frick - Steel. 
C) ~.P.Morgan - Financing. 
D) ~ohn D. Rockefeller - Oil. 
E) Collis Huntington - Railroads. 
F) George Pullman - Railroads. 
G) Gustavus Swift - Meat Packing. 

*****Are called:, "Robber Barons." 
H) "Robber Barons:" 

I. Most - Ancestry - England. , 
II. Most -Protestants. 
III. Most - Well educated. 
IV. Live in spectacular mansions. 
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V. Have a rural estate. 
VI. Sons - To elite boarding schools. 
VII. Daughters ~ To finishing schools. 

5. The South: 
A) Largest %'age of the population is Black. 
B) Sharecroppers are "slaves" to cotton. 

6. Immigrants: 
A) Large families. 
B) Adapt to U.S. quickly. 
C) Catholic Church plays a key role: 

I.' Parochial Schools to protect Immigrant children 
from biases of Public Schools. 

D) Make up most of the "working class." 
E) Depend on children to help support the family: 

I. Especially the teens. 
'II. No'child labor laws. 
III. No compulsory education. 

F) Josiah Strong - Writes book - "Our Country" -
Attacks Immigrants: 
I. Threat to Anglo-Saxon Race. 
II. Not freedom loving like' "Protestants." 
III. Have no moral training. 
IV. Have no religious training. 
V. Bring crime with them. 
VI. Undermine Politics. 

, , ' 

VII. Undermine morals. 



( VIII. They concentrate in big cities. 
IX. Cannot be assimilated into American life. 

7 • Emergence .ofbelief in "Social Darwinism:" 
A) Combination of Social Theory and Evolutionary 

Science: 
I. Opposes Government policies to help the poor. 
II. Opposes Government compensating for Racial 

Discrimination. 
III. Social inequality is natural and should not be 

changed. 
B) "Survival of the Fittest." 

8. Prize Fighting becomes professionally organized: 
A) Huge audiences. 
B) Richard Fox - "National Police Gazette:" 

I. Advertises fights.· 
II. Puts up prize money. 

·111. Establishes rules. 
IV. Develops gloves. 
V. 3 minute rounds. 
VI. 10 seconds for a Knockout. 

C) .John L. Sullivan: 
·1. Best kn:o""n of the fighters. 

9. Literature: 
A) A lot has homosexual overtones: 

I. Walt Whitman - Poetry. 
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II. Horatio Alger. 

10. Males: 
A) Prostitutes on a regular basis. 
B) Watch sexually provocative shows. 
C) Read erotic novels. 
D) Look at pornographic prints. 
E) Engage in unconventional sexual practices ••• 

Kinky!!! 
F) Fascination with the human body. 
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The Brack Cornett Gang 
1. Brack Cornett: 

A) From Goliad County, Texas. 
B) Leader of the gang. 
C) Primary members are: 

I. John Barbour. 
II. Bill Whitley. 
III. Bud Powell. 
IV. Charlie Ross. 

2. 1880's - Terrorize Texas with bank and train 
robberies: 

A) Cisco, Texas - Bank • $25 thousand. 
B) McNeill, Texas - I. and G.N. Train • $20 

thousand. 
C) Flatonia, Texas - Train - Thousands of 

dollars in cash, watches, jewelry, and 
diamondsl 

3. Ends: 
A) John Barbour - Shot and killed by lawmen 

in the Indian Territory! 
B) Bud Powell - Arrested - Texas State 

Penitentiary at Huntsville: 
I. Released - Never heard from again. 

C) Bill Whitley: 
I. September 25, 1888 - Floresville, Texas. 
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II. Shot and killed by U.S. Marshal, Duval 
West and his deputies. 

D) Brack Comett: 
I. Frio County, Texas - Ranch. 
II. Killed in a gunfight by Deputy Sheriff, 

Alfred Allee. 



1. Ned Christie: 

1885 
Ned Christie 

A) Full-blood Cherokee Indian. 
B) Lives in Oklahoma. 
C) Whiskey Peddler. 
D) Horse Thief. 
E) Bandit. 
F) Strongly opposed to Government allotment 

of land in the Indian Territory. 
G) Member of the Cherokee Council called the 

"Keetoyah Society." 

( 2. 1885 - Kills U.S. Deputy Marshal, Dan Maples. 

3. 1889 - Gunfight with U.S. Deputy Marshals, 
Heck Thomas and L.P. Isabel: 
A) Christie is wounded. 
B) Christie wounds Isabel and gets away. 
C) Flees into the Cookson Hills where he 

builds a log fort! 
D) Lawmen go to arrest him: 

I. Gunfight. 
II. He wounds several. 
III. They retreat. 

4. The Department of Justice sends 12 U.S. 
Deputy Marshals with a 3 pound cannon to 
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blast him out! 

5. November 1, 1892: 
A) Inside the log fort are Christie and Arch 

Wolf. 
B) Surrounded by a total of 16 men. 
C) All-day gunfight. 
D) Wolf escapes. 
E) 30 shots from the cannon fail to dent the 

fort! 
F) Over 2,000 rifle and pistol shots are fired at 

the fort! 
G) Rails are piled on an old wagon: 

I. Charlie Copeland hides behind the 
barricade. 

II. Rolled against the fort. 
III. Copeland places 6 sticks of dynamite. 
IV. BOOM!!! 

H) Christie comes out firing: 
I. Shot and killed. 
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1885 
Bass Outlaw - Lawman 

1. Bass Outlaw: 
A) Born - Georgia. 
B) Small. 
C) Becomes fast on the "draw" and accurate 

with a .451 
D) Nickname: "Little Wolf." 
E) 1885 - Texas Ranger: 

I. Good record - Promotions. 
F) Starts drinking heavily: 

I. Becomes "nasty" - Bad-tempered - Holds 
grudges. 

G) Alpine, Texas - Drunk on duty - Card game 
- Loses all of his money - Threatens a 
man: 
I. Fired from the Rangersl 

2. Becomes a U.S. Deputy Marshal - Superior is 
Dick Ware. 

3. April 4, 1894 - Ware, Outlaw, and Deputy Bufe 
Cline arrive in EI Paso, Texas for court: 

A) Outlaw - Bad mood - Starts drinking. 
B) With 2 old friends - Goes to Tillie Howard's 

Whore House: 
I. Followed by Constable, John Selman. 
II. Asks for his favorite girl- "Busy". 



( III. Mad - Goes into back yard and starts 
shooting his pistol. 

IV. 5:00 - Afternoon - Constables, Selman 
and Chaves along with Texas Ranger, 
.Joe McKidrict enter the yard. 

V. McKidrict tries to get him to put down 
his gun. 

VI. Shoots McKidrict in the head killing 
him - Straddles body - Shoots again! 

VII. Selman pulls pistol - Outlaw wounds 
him in the right leg - As Selman falls 
he shoots Outlaw in the chest above 
the heart: 
a •• ullet goes all the way through. 

VIII. Outlaw jumps the fence and manages 
to run down the alley for a block 
before being arrested! 

C) Taken to Barnum's Saloon: 
I. Placed in a whore's bed. 
II. Knows he is dying. 
III. 9:00 - Night - Dead! 
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1885 
George Scarborough - Lawman 

1. George Scarborough: 
A) Born - 1859 - Louisiana. 
B) Texas - Cowboy. 
C) Marries - 2 sons and 4 daughters. 
D) 5 feet, 7 inches tall - Light brown hair and 

mustache - Blue eyes. 
E) Likeable. 
F) Very good shot with a rifle or pistol. 

2. 1885 - Sheriff of ,Jones County, Texas -
Several terms. 

3. 1894 - U.S. Deputy Marshal- Stationed at EI 
Paso, Texas. 

4. April 5, 1896 - Kills ,John Selman Sr. 

5. 1898 - Hired by the New Mexico Cattle 
Raisers Association: 
A) Has 5 men working under him: 

I. Track down cattle thieves, train robbers, 
and other outlaws. 

6. April 1906 - He and Deputy Sheriff, Walter 
Birchfield are trailing 4 outlaws: Max Stein -
Tom Capehart - Frank Laughlin - and Will 
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Carver: 
A) Are 30 miles south of San Simon - Near the 

New Mexico/Arizona line. 
B) April 6th 

- Overtake the 4 - Gunfight: 
I. Scarborough is shot totally through the 

leg: 
a. Crawls behind a rock. 
b. He and Birchfield continue firing. 

II. All day! 
III. Dark - Outlaws retreat! 
IV. Birchfield makes Scarborough as 

comfortable as possible: 
a. Heads for San Simon - 30 miles 

away - To get help! 
V. Night - Snows. 

C) April 7 th 
- Noon - Help reaches 

Scarborough: 
I. Wagon - Head for Deming - Gangrene 

has s.et in! 
II. Dies of the exposure and gangrene! 



( 1885 - March 
1. March 4, 1885 - Inauguration - 47 year old, 

Democrat, Grover Cleveland - 22nd President: 
A) Born - 3/18/1837 - Caldwell, New Jersey. 
B) No college. 
C) Civil War ••• Hires substitute for Union Army. 
D) 1859 - Lawyer. 
E) 1871 - Sheriff. 
F) 1883 - Governor - New York. 
G) Reputation for honesty. 
H) 5 feet 11 inches tall - 260 pounds. 
I) Personal Bible to be sworn into office. 
J) 6/2/1886 - Age 49 - Marries 21 year old, 

Frances Folsom. 
K) ONLY President to be married IN the White 

House. 
L) Daughter "Ruth": 

I. Newspapers - "Baby Ruth." 
II. Nestle's Candy Company ••• Baby Ruth 

Candy Bar! 
M) Committed to limited Government. 
N) NOT an Anti-Trust President! 
0) 6/24/1908 - Age 71 - Dies - $250 thousand 

estate. 



March 1885 
The Panama Intervention of 1885 

1. From 1800 to 1934 ••• U.S.M.C. makes 180 
landings abroad! 

2. 1885 - Revolution in Panama: 
A) Tremendous violence. 
B) American Merchants & Diplomats feel 

threatened! 

3. U.S. warships arrive: 
A) Have Marines & Navy Bluejackets for 

landings. 

4. Rafael Aizpuru revolts: 
A) Takes Panama City. 

B) Kills 25. 
C) Disrupts the Panama Railroad. 
D) Threatens to kill Americans. 

5. Pablo Prestan terrorizes Colon. 

6. March 29, 1885: 



( A) Pacific Mail Steamer "Colon" arrives. 
B) Carrying a shipment of arms. 
C) Prestan seizes 6 Americans ••• Threatens to 

kill them ••• IF, the arms are not turned over to 
him! 

D) American Consul orders the arms be turned 
over to him. 

E) Prestan releases the hostages. 
F) BUT, the weapons transfer is blocked! 
G) Prestan seizes 2 Pacific Mail employees. 

7. March 31, 1885: 
C· A) Captain Theodore Kane & 126 men land in 

Colon: 
I. To protect Americans and their property. 

B) Same day •••• : 
I. 2 Pacific Mail employee hostages escape 

from Prestan. 

8. By April 11, 1885: 
A) 2,000 U.S. soldiers under Rear Admiral James 

Jouett: 
I. Control the length of the Panama Railroad. 

II. Capture Panama City. 
III. Arrest Aizpuru. 



9. May 25, 1885: 
A) U.S. troops are withdrawn. 

10. Aizpuru ••••• 10 years in exile. 

11. Prestan ••••• Hanged by the Colombians! 

I 
\ 
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1. Charles Hall: 

A) Develops process of extracting Aluminum 
from iron ore. 

2. Stanton Coit: 

A) New York City. 

B) Opens "Settlement House": 
I. 1st house for the poor in America. 

3. Samuel Gompers: 

A) Founds the A.F. of L. - American Federation 
( ofLabo~ 
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B) A.F. of L.: 
I. Skilled Trades: 

(1) Miners. 

(2) Printers. 

(3) Molders. 

(4) Carpenters. 

(5) Etc. 
II. Goals of the A.F. of L.: 

(1) Shorter work hours. 

(2) Increased pay. 
(3) Establish the Union to last. 

III. Indifferent to: 
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(1) Women. 

(2) Recent Immigrants. 
(3) Less Skilled Workers. 

4. Knights of Labor: 

A) Membership ••• Over 700,000. 
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Tom "Doc" Middleton - Outlaw 

1. Tom "Doc" Middleton: 
A) Cowboy - Trail drives - Texas to Abilene 

and Dodge City, Kansas. 
B) Cowboy - In Nebraska and Wyoming. 

2. Turns outlaw: 
A) Gunman. 
B) Robber. 
C) Horse Thief. 

3. Serves a 1 year prison term. 

4. Later - Steals a horse: 
A) Caught by Vigilantes and lynched I 
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.Jim Miller - Outlaw/Killer 
1. Background: 

A) Born - Brady, Texas. 
B) At age 8 he is suspected of killing his 

grandparents! 
C) Moves to West Texas. 
D) At age 17 - Shoots his sister's husband, Jim 

Coops, in bed with a shotgun, killing him! 
E) Tried - Guilty - Life! 
F) New trial granted - Acquitted! 
G) Murders Jim Jarrot! 
H) Serves as Deputy Sheriff of Pecos City, 

Texas. 
I) Serves as a Texas Ranger. 
J) Serves as a U.S. Deputy Marshal. 
K) Involved in several killings. 
L) Involved in horse racing and gambling. 
M) Is 5 feet 10 inches tall - Blue eyes -

Premature gray hair. 
N) Never smokes! 
0) Neber drinks! 
P) Never swears! 
Q) Prays a lot!!!!!!!!!!!!! 
R) Weapon of choice is a shotgun! 
S) Called: "Killer Miller." 

2. Moves to Oklahoma: 



A) Involved in illegal activities. 
B) Ada, Oklahoma - .Joe Allen, Berry Burwell, 

and .Jesse West hire him to murder the City 
Marshall, A.A. Bobbitt, for $2 thousand: 
I. Bobbitt is interfering with their illegal 

activities! 
C) Bobbitt is on his way home: 

I. Shot from ambush with a shotgun! 
II. Before he dies he identifies Miller as his 

killer! 

3. April 19, 1909 - 2:00 - Morning: 
A) 40 masked men find Miller and the 3 men 

who have hired him gambling in a bam: 
I. 4 ropes over beam in bam. 
II. same horse used for all 4 men. 
III. Lynched! 

4. Miller has killed at least 20 men in his lifetime! 



1886 - February 
1. February 7, 1886 - Seattle, Washington: 

A) Anti-Chinese race riots: 
I. 400 Chinese are driven from their homes. 



( 1886 - May 
1. May 1, 1886 - Nationwide strike: 

A) For 8 hour workday. 
B) 1,OOO's walk off jobs. 
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May 4,1886 
The Haymarket Riot 

1. Workers in Chicago and New York City are 
demanding an 8 hour work day instead of 10, 
and, a stoppage to Police violence against 
them! 

2. Management has refused the demands! 

3. Chicago - 40,000 workers go on strike! 

4. Monday - May 3, 1886 - Chicago: 
A) 10,000 workers attack the McCormick 

Reaper works on Western Avenue: 
I. Patrol Wagon - 12 Policmen - Arrives. 
II. Draw pistols - Order crowd to disperse. 
III. Hit by a volley of rocks. 
IV. Fire over the head of the crowd. 
V. Police are cursed and jeered at! 
VI. Fire into the workers hitting several! 
VII. Workers fire back - Hit nobody. 
VIII. More Police arrive - Crowd dispersed. 

B) Evening - August Spies, Editor of a Semi­
Anarchist Newspaper: 
I. Calls for a massive meeting the next 

day: 
a. Other radicals advertise the meeting. 



5. Tuesday - May 4, 1886 - Evening - Chicago-
Old Haymarket Plaza at des Plaines and .j 

Randolph Streets: /tfrf'LeL 
A) 3,000 workers, most armed, gather! .(. ~fi(!., 
B) EXPECT a clash with the Police! c;,~~~ / 
C) Many speakers. ,,~\ li' 
D) Police Inspector, John Birchfield, and ••• 

Policemen force their way through the 
crowd to the speaker's platform: 
I. Order the speakers to cease. 
II. Order the crowd to disperse. 
III. Police are stoned and jeered at! 

E) Suddenly - From an alley - Dynamite Bomb 
is thrown: 
I. Middle of Police! - BOOM!!! 
II. Kills 7 Policemen and wounds 67: 

a. 11 will be crippled for life. 
III. Kills 4 workers and wounds 50. 
IV. The crowt/is scattered! 

6. 8 Labor Organizers are arrested and charged 
with being accessories before the fact in a 
Constructive Conspiracy to Commit Murder: 
A) August Spies - Samuel Fielden - George 

Engel - Albert Parsons - Oscar Neebe -
Michael Schwab - Louis Lingg - and Adolph 
Fischer: 
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I. NONE of the men have thrown the bombl 

7 • .June 21, 1886 - The 8 men are tried: 
A) .Judge is .Joseph Gary - BIASED! 

I. He knows the jurors and their feelings! 
II. Will not allow the men to be tried separately. 

B) Prosecution PAYS for some of the testimony!! 
C) The men are actually being tried for being 

. Anarchists! 

D) Prosecutor claims their speeches "caused the bomb 
to be thrown." 

E) All 8 ..... Guilty: 
I. Neebe - 15 years! 
II. Schwab, Lingg, & Felden - Life! 

(1 ) Lingg wilf commit ·suicide in prison. 
III. Spies, Parsons, & Engel - Death! 

8. November 11, 1887 - The 4 are hanged. 

9 • .June 1893 - Governor of Illinois, .John Altgeld: 
A) Pardons the remaining 3 men: 

I. Why? - Unfair trial!! 



1886 - October 
1. October 28, 1886 - New York City Harbor: 

A) Bedloe's Island. 
B) Statue of Liberty is dedicated. 
C) Gift from France. 

D) Idea ••• French Politician, Edouard Rene 
Lefebvre de Laboulaye. 

E) Sculptor, Fredric Auguste Bartholdi: 
I. Mother is the model. 
II. "Liberty Enlightening the World." 

F) June 17, 1885 - Arrives in New York City. 

G) Weighs 225 tons. 
H) Base to top ••• 330 feet! 
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1. Frank Sprague - Richmond, Virginia: 
A) 1st successful Trolley Line in America. 

2. Baseball - Championship Game: 
A) 51,000 fans watch game •.. 

3. Congress creates: 
A) Interstate Commerce Commission. 

4. ·The Dawes Severalty Act: 
A) Known as The Indian Allotment Act. 
B) Will break up Indian land. 
C) Will be an attempt to make the Indians live like 

"White Farmers." 
D) Will· destroy Indian political and social organization. 
E) Supposed to give the Indians the right to own land 

on an individual basis: 
I. BUT ••••• : 

. (1) Land is not suited for farming. 
(2) Indians have no capital. 
(3) Indians have no interest in farming. 
(4) Act violates Indian philosophy. 
(5) To the Indians, the land is sacred • 

. (6) To the Indians, the land is part. of the Great 
Spirit's design for life. 

(7) The Indians consider the land "Mother Earth," 
the mother of all living things. 



( F) NO provisions for population increase! 
G) Indian numbers shrink ••• Allotments are reduced ••• 

Left over land is declared surplus & sold to Whites! 
H) Economic disaster for the Indians: 

I. The Indians own the land free and clear, so, must 
pay taxes on it like any other citizen! 

II.Can't ••••• Lands taken and sold to Whites for failure 
. . 

to pay taxes! 
III. Millions of acres of Indian lands are taken this 

way by the states and sold off to Whites! 



1. Tom Horn: 

1887 
Tom Hom 

A) Bom - November 21, 1861 - Memphis, 
Missouri. 

B) @ age 14 - Goes to Kansas. 
C) Goes to Santa Fe, New Mexico. 
D) Arizona - Pony Express Rider. 
E) .January 1875 - Pay of $5 per month -

Stagecoach Driver: 
I. Between Santa Fe, New Mexico and 

Prescott, Arizona. 
F) Smart - Speaks German, Spanish, and 

Apache. 
G) War against Geronimo - Scout for Army: 

I. Helps bring about the surrender. 
H) Mines - Cowboy. 
I) 1887 - Deputy for Sheriff Bucky O'Neil of 

Yavapai County, Arizona • 
.J) 1888 - Rodeo Star: 

I. Good Bronc Rider. 
II. World Champion Steer Roper. 

K) 1890 - Works for the Pinkerton Detective 
Agency: 
I. 1894 - Resigns. 

L) Range Detective in Colorado: 
I. Tracks down cattle thieves. 

M) Wyoming - Hired by the Wyoming Stock 



Grower's Association: 
I. Range Detective. 
II. Short time later - Fired. 

N) Works privately as a "Stock Detective": 
I. Is a thief killer! 
II. Works for different cattlemen. 
III. Gets $500 to $700 for each thief killed. 

0) 1895 - Near Cheyenne, Wyoming - Kills a 
man named "Lewis": 
I. Leaves him with "The Hom Trademark": 

a. Rock placed under his head! 
P) 1895 - Kills Levi Powell in front of his 6 

year old son: 
I. Son later identifies Hom. 

Q) Many other killings attributed to him - No 
proof! 

R) Fights in the Spanish/American War: 
I. Commended for bravery. 

2. Back to Wyoming - Same job: 
A) Kills Matt Rush. 
B) Kills Isham Dart. 
C) Kills a black man. 

3. 2 Ranchers, Kels Nickell and .Jim Miller, hate 
each other!!! 

4. Summer of 1901 - Nickell brings in Sheep: 



A) Hatred deepens! 

5. July 18, 1901 - Willie Nickell- 14 year old son 
- Is shot to death 3t. of a mile from the Nickell 
Ranch: 
A) Inquest - No proof - No witnesses. 
B) Enter Joe Lafors, U.S. Deputy Marshal - Ex­

Range Detective: 
I. Seems determined to implicate Hom in 

the murder! 

6. January 12, 1902 - Lafors meets Hom in 
Cheyenne - Offers Hom a job - Horn gets 
drunk - Lafors sets a trap: 

( A) A Deputy and a Shorthand Reporter are in 
an adjoining room. 

B) Hom arrives - Drunk - Lafors asks leading 
questions: 
I. reporter takes down the "confession." 

7. January 13, 1902 - Hom is arrested and 
charged with the Nickell Murder: 
A) Trial - Hom denies the confession - Hom 

denies having anything to do with the 
murderl 
I. The "confession" taken down by the 

Reporter doesn't match Lafors or the 
Deputy's stories! 



a. Later - Too late - Proven the Reporter 
changed the wording of the 
"confession." 

II. Surgeon testifies that Hom's gun did not 
do the killing! 

B) GUlL TV!! - Sentenced to hang! 

8. Hom and a petty thief named, McCloud, 
attempt to escape: 
A) They nearly beat Under Sheriff, Proctor, to 

death! 
I. Both captured a few minutes later. 

9. Appeals to the Governor and Supreme Court: 
A) Glendolene Kimmell - Hom's girlfriend and 

ex-Tutor in the Miller household: 
I. Swears before both that she overheard 

Victor Miller, Jim Miller'S son, tell his 
father that he killed Willie Nickell!! 
a. Doesn't do any goodl 

10. Friday - November 20, 1903 - Hom is taken 
to the gallows: 

A) Calm. 
B) Hangman is Deputy Sheriff and County 

Clerk, T. Joe Cahill. 
C) Water gallows: 

I. Designed by James Julian. 



( 

D) Arms strapped to sides - Black hood over 
face - Noose around neck: 
I. Body weight will "hang yourself." 
11.21 seconds - Drops - Takes 17 minutes 

to strangle to death - 1 day short of his 
43rd birthday! 

11. Questions: 
A) $1 thousand reward for the Nickell 

murderer: 
I. Did Lafors, Deputy, and Reporter 

conspire to get a scapegoat for the 
reward money? 

B) Kimmell's testimony to the Govemor was 
disregarded ••••• why? 
I. The Govemor was a close friend of 

Laforsllll! 

12. Kels Nickell always believed that the Millers 
killed his son, NOT Hom! 


